## DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

EVENING COMMUNITY MEETING

Thursday, July 26, 2018 3:00 p.m.

DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS

1301 Third Street

Detroit, Michigan 48203

Page 2 COMMISSIONERS: WILLIE BELL, Chairperson (Dist. 4) LISA CARTER, Commissioner (Dist. 6) EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Commissioner At-Large JIM HOLLEY, Commissioner At-Large ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner At-Large SHIRLEY BURCH, Commissioner (Dist. 3) WILLIE E. BURTON, Commissioner (Dist. 5) WILLIAM DAVIS (Dist. 7) GREGORY HICKS, Secretary to the Board ROBERT BROWN, Executive Manager REPRESENTING OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF POLICE: DEPUTY CHIEF CHARLES FITZGERALD 



Τ	Detroit, Michigan
2	July 26, 2018
3	At or about 3:00 p.m.
4	
5	COMMISSIONER BELL: Good afternoon.
6	ATTENDEES: Good afternoon.
7	COMMISSIONER BELL: Good to see you this
8	afternoon. I am Police Commissioner Willie Bell. I
9	represent District Four. I serve as Chair of the Board and
10	will be conducting our meeting today. I want to say on
11	behalf of the Board for those in attendance, thank you for
12	joining us. For people viewing this meeting on your
13	government cable channel, thank you for viewing our
14	meeting.
15	I just want to say on behalf of the Board, I
16	would like to have you join us remembering the life of
17	Police Officer James Hearn, Badge 3589. I understand that
18	Officer Hearn was off duty and was involved in an
19	automobile accident on Woodward and State Fair. The
20	accident resulted in loss of life for two people. Please
21	join me in a moment of silence.
22	(MOMENT OF SILENCE OBSERVED)
23	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Please keep the
24	officer's family in your prayers.
25	Commissioners, our Vice Chair, Darryl Brown, is



## 7/26/2018

	Page 4
1	away and asked to be excused from today's meeting. I'm
2	going to ask the commissioners to introduce themselves at
3	this particular time starting to my far left.
4	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Eva Garza Dewaelsche
5	At-Large.
6	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jim Holley, At-Large.
7	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Lisa Carter, District Six.
8	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Elizabeth Brooks, At-Large.
9	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Shirley Burch, District
10	Three.
11	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: William Davis, District
12	Seven.
13	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, commissioners.
14	Mr. Hicks, do we have a quorum?
15	MR. HICKS: Yes, Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.
16	
17	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
18	I'm going to ask for invocation we've invited
19	Detroit Police Chaplain Corp. Chaplain Tia Davis to provide
20	the invocation.
21	Would you come forward, please. Thank you ma'am.
22	CHAPLAIN DAVIS: Good afternoon everyone.
23	THE BOARD: Good afternoon.
24	CHAPLAIN DAVIS: For surely this is the day the
25	Lord has made, and we will rejoice and be glad in it. Our



## 7/26/2018

	Page 5
1	hearts go out to the officer that went on with the Lord,
2	and let us keep him in our prayers.
3	(At 3:05 p.m., invocation given)
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
5	Commissioners, I request that you approve the
6	agenda for this afternoon's meeting.
7	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: So moved.
8	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Support.
9	COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
10	supported.
11	Discussion? Those in favor aye Board aye.
12	THE BOARD: Aye.
13	COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion
14	carried.
15	The next item would be the minutes from July 19,
16	2018.
17	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So moved.
18	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Support.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
20	supported.
21	Those I'm sorry, discussion? Those in favor
22	aye.
23	THE BOARD: Aye.
24	COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Motion carried.
25	Thank you.



1	The next item of business would be for Mr. Hicks
2	to introduce the Board staff.
3	MR. HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I do want to
4	indicate just prior to introducing the staff that Sergeant
5	Quinn is taping the meeting this evening. Media Services
6	is doing the audio visual work. And Donna Williams is the
7	court reporter for today.
8	And then if we could turn our attention to
9	Ms. Bridget Lamar who's sitting on the left side in the
LO	first row who is the interim director for DPD Personnel.
11	And then Robert Brown is immediately next to me. And if we
12	go to the first row on the right-hand side we have Mr.
13	Wyrick for attorney for the Board, Ms. Johnson who, of
14	course, is fiscal manager for the Board, and then Dr. Polly
15	McCalister would will introduce not only herself, but the
16	balance of the OCI staff that are present.
L7	DR. MCCALISTER: Good afternoon, Board.
18	THE BOARD: Good afternoon.
19	DR. MCCALISTER: I'm Polly McCalister, chief
20	investigator. And attending today's meeting with me today
21	is Senior Investigator Moses, Senior Investigator Madrigal,
22	Senior Investigator Sloan, Investigator Murphy. He's not
23	made it down yet. Investigator Quick, Investigator Nealy,
24	Investigator Hunter, Investigator Stanton, Investigator

25

Turner, Investigator Callaway, and Investigator James.

COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.
Next item of business would I see a name tag
for Assistant Chief Arnold Williams, but I think this is
Deputy Chief Charles Fitzgerald.
DC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.
COMMISSIONER BELL: Good to see you this
afternoon
DC FITZGERALD: Thank you.
COMMISSIONER BELL: filling in for Chief
Craig. Would you introduce any other DPD staff, please.
DC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir. Before I start I want
the whole group that came in looking like a walking protest
is our L-Pack S-Pack group who's voting tomorrow, so it's
good to have them here. And I will start at the beginning
and allow them to introduce themselves just so I don't
screw up.
(At 3:08 p.m., self-introduction by chief's
staff)
DC FITZGERALD: That's it.
COMMISSIONER BELL: Well in my day we call it
OCS, Officer's Candidate School. You call it.
DC FITZGERALD: L-Pack S-Pack.
THE COURT: Well L-Pack stand up and introduce
themselves one by one, please.



DC FITZGERALD: Doesn't matter who.

25

1	(Self-introduction of L-Pack S-Pack Group)
2	(APPLAUSE)
3	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. I had the
4	opportunity to speak to this class a week ago. And I
5	assume our chief investigator had an opportunity to speak
6	to them too.
7	DR. MCCALISTER: Not yet.
8	COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. I would ask that the
9	most senior ranking of rank of lieutenant, would you
10	please come to the mic. And you can share any brief
11	remarks that you want to share with the Board.
12	DC FITZGERALD: Who is it?
13	COMMISSIONER BELL: We'll see how fast you can
14	think on your feet.
15	SERGEANT BOWSER: Good afternoon. I'm Brad
16	Bowser, being promoted to lieutenant tomorrow. In regards
17	to the
18	COMMISSIONER BELL: Whatever you want to share
19	with us.
20	SERGEANT BOWSER: Okay. I think that the group
21	of guys and gals that we have together is a reflection on
22	the department. It's a good mix of folks from a varied
23	background, both patrol, investigative and administrative.
24	So I'd like to say how proud I am of the guys and gals, and
25	I think they're going to do a great job.



1	COMMISSIONER BELL: And thank you for sharing
2	those impromptu remarks.
3	SERGEANT BOWSER: Thanks a lot. I'm all set.
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: That's why you're getting
5	paid the big check now, right? And we're looking forward
6	to seeing you tomorrow; is that correct?
7	SERGEANT BOWSER: Yes, sir.
8	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes or no?
9	SERGEANT BOWSER: Yes.
10	COMMISSIONER BELL: I mean, we want to know. We
11	plan on being there. We want you to be there too.
12	Thank you. Thank you for coming out and taking
13	time to come to a board. Some of you probably perhaps
14	this is your first time attending a board meeting. Is that
15	true?
16	SERGEANT BOWSER: Yes.
17	COMMISSIONER BELL: But you all have probably had
18	the opportunity to interact with OCI though, right? Thank
19	you. Thank you for your attendance. Thank you deputy
20	chief.
21	Do we have any elected officials or elected
22	official representatives in the audience, please?
23	Yes, sir.
24	MR. SLAUGHTER: James Slaughter representing
25	Congresswoman Brenda Lawrence 14th Congressional District.



## 7/26/2018

	Page II
1	COMMISSIONER BELL: Could you say it a little bit
2	louder.
3	MR. SLAUGHTER: James Slaughter representing
4	Congresswoman Brenda Lawrence, 14th Congressional District.
5	COMMISSIONER BELL: My 14th Congressional
6	District. I just want to share that with you.
7	Any others?
8	If this is your first time not discounting the
9	class any audience, if this is your first time attending
10	a meeting would you stand please. And your name, please.
11	MS. MAYHAM: Susan Mayham (Phonetic).
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for coming out. We
13	appreciate it.
14	MS. MAYHAM: Absolutely.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: We can move on. On behalf of
16	the Board, I want to express our concern and support for
17	fallen and injured officers and their families including
18	Officer James Hearn. Our board receives a weekly report
19	from the department listing injured officers, but I would
20	ask the chief during his remarks, or the deputy chief
21	during his remarks, to provide us with any additional
22	information related to injured and fallen officers.
23	The Board of Police Commissioners meet every week
24	except for Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday period. We



25

meet at police headquarters in a regular session. Three

_	
שמבע	- 1 1
Fage	

1	weeks in the month on Thursday third week in the month
2	on Thursday we meet let's try that again. Okay, we meet
3	at 3:00 three meetings in the month. On the fourth month
4	on the second Thursday of the month we meet at 6:30 p.m.
5	You mentioned I should go over this before I
6	started reading. Get a flow. It's been a while, so
7	The Board of Police Commissioners exist to
8	provide civilian oversight for the work of the Detroit
9	Police Department. As a Board we receive and investigate
10	noncriminal complaints. We monitor operations of the
11	department and work with the mayor and the chief of police
12	to make or modify police policy. Our objective is the same
13	as the city of Detroit, to provide for the best use of your
14	tax dollars to improve on the quality of life within our
15	city.
16	As a Board we bring a unique perspective to
17	policing, the eyes and viewpoints of civilians. The
18	principle of Civilian Oversight is as old and as important
19	as all of the founding principles in a democracy.
20	Separation of power between when government allows for
21	accountability, transparency, right to appeal and citizen
22	control. These principles are important nationally as well
23	as locally.

25

Today we have two presentations to the Board.

The first is the regular report from the Office of the

Chief Investigator. Dr. Polly McCalister will be making
the report. The second report is from DPD on Advanced
Police Technologies. The wording of this presentation in
our agenda may appear to be complicated but is a simple
concept.

Detroit City Charter gives the Board of Police Commissioners supervisory control and oversight over the police department, Section 7802. The charter requires that the chief present to the Board an annual report, Section 7806-6, an Annual Department Or Operation Improvement Plan, Section 78067, and under Section 78032 requires the Board to review and approve the department budget before it's submitted to the mayor. If we think about what the charter is attempting to do with these specific requirements within our mandate to provide supervisory control and oversight, the charter is recognizing the importance of civilian authority and policing.

Detroit Police Department is a paramilitary organization to provide a crime fighting service for residents and visitors to Detroit. With this in mind, the presentation hopefully would answer four basic questions.

Number one, when the department looks outward into the community, what analysis and recommendation does it make for delivering police service to the people?

Within the analysis, what two programs and technology do we

Page 13

have to service people? Number three, how well is it
working? Can we identify the strength and weakness of our
effort? Number four, after examining the effectiveness of
these tools, programs and technology, should we continue
our investment in these approaches to law enforcement?

Depending on the answer to these questions, we can assure the public that our city is using their tax dollars effectively. We can also say that the department priorities reflects the needs of the people because of our proactive view and engagement in policing addressing real conditions.

The Board of Police Commissioners depends on the professionalism of the chief and the hard work of the command staff and officers. To make the department work in the interest of all of us, each party must play a role to deliver the police service. Our obligation is to stay out of the day-to-day operation of the department while providing supervisory control and oversight. This means answering the questions and forcing the department to look beyond an individual incident and plan for a reasonable and rational service delivery. Again, I hope the presentation will address these important items. Issues I should say.

ON today's agenda is also a resolution to honor 32 years of service in the retirement of Police Officer Sharon Elizabeth Tillman.

1	As part of my responsibility as the Chair I have
2	reviewed subcommittee assignments. In your packet you will
3	see a new list of committee assignments. I have tried to
4	balance the assignments and take under consideration the
5	talent and interest within the Board. I have instructed
6	staff to initiate a meeting on under the new committee
7	assignment structure. If any of the Board would like to
8	discuss their assignment, please do so after the meeting.
9	Toward the end of the meeting we'll have oral
10	communication. Please make sure you print your name on a
11	speaker card. Cards are located in the back of the table
12	or can be obtained by Mr. Brown to my far right. And he
13	needs your card before beginning of public comments.
14	That's the end of my remarks. And next item
15	would be the resolution for Retired Police Officer Sharon
16	Tillman by Commissioner Davis.
17	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Is she in the house? Is she
18	present? If not I will go ahead and read this.
19	RESOLUTION HONORING RETIRED
20	OFFICER SHARON ELIZABETH TILLMAN
21	WHEREAS Ms. Sharon Tillman was appointed to the Detroit
22	Police Department on December 3, 1986. Upon graduating from the Detroit Metropolitan Police
23	Academy, Officer Tillman began her career at the Fourth Precinct; and
24	WHEREAS Officer Tillman dutifully served at Special
25	Crimes, Felony Prevention Division, reassigned to the Fourth Precinct, the Thirteenth Precinct,

1		Officer Tillman worked patrol and community
2		relations. She was reassigned back to the Recruiting Unit where she remained until her retirement; and
3	WHEREAS	During her law enforcement career, Officer
4	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Tillman received the following citations: The
5		Chief's Citation, Perfect Attendance Award, Perfect Driving Award, the Major League Baseball
6		All-Star Recognition Award, the Rosa Parks Funeral Recognition Award, the NFL Super Bowl XL Recognition Award, Department of Justice, and (3)
7		Citations while at the 13th Precinct for Assault
8		with Intent to Commit Murder Arrests in October of 1993 and numerous Letters of Appreciation throughout her career; and
9	WHEREAS	Officer Tillman has diligently served the Detroit
10	WILLIAM	Police Department, the citizens of Detroit and its neighboring communities for more than 32
11		years. Her professionalism, commitment to public service, integrity, and dedication has been a
12		credit to the Detroit Police Department. She is highly respected as a consummate professional.
1.0		mighty respected as a consummate professional.
13		
14	NOW THERE	FORE, BE IT RESOLVED
14	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission
14 15	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in
14	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public
14 15	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable
14 15 16	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer
14 15 16 17	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest
14 15 16 17	NOW THERE	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer
14 15 16 17 18		That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer Sharon Tillman.
14 15 16 17 18 19 20		That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer Sharon Tillman.  The Board of police commissioner with each one
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	signing.	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer Sharon Tillman.  The Board of police commissioner with each one So moved.
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	signing.	That the Detroit Police of the commission speaking for the citizens of Detroit and the Detroit Police Department award this rest in recognition of the lifelong commitment to public safety by officer Sharon Tillman. Your exemplary service to law enforcement has been an invaluable asset to the department and meets our highest regard. We salute and congratulate you officer Sharon Tillman.  The Board of police commissioner with each one So moved.  COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved. I



1	the supported.
2	Discussion?
3	Those in favor aye.
4	THE BOARD: Aye.
5	COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Thank you,
6	commissioners.
7	Next item would be hearing from Deputy Chief
8	Fitzgerald. But I want to acknowledge Commissioner Willie
9	Burton from District Five for your attendance this
LO	afternoon. Thank you, sir.
11	Deputy Chief.
12	DC FITZGERALD: Yes, sir. I will going to the
13	crime stats just go quickly so we can to get to some of
L4	this other stuff.
15	The numbers continue to trend in the right
L6	direction. We're down 16 criminal homicides over the same
L7	period last year, which is in other terms we're at 138 as
18	of this morning. We're at 154 last year, so it's a 10%
19	decrease. Our nonfatal shootings continue to trend in the
20	right direction. We're down 100 over the same time last
21	year, from 387 to 487. We have a slight uptake in the
22	carjackings, and there's a slight uptake in criminal sexual
23	contacts. But it's more of the how we report this year.
24	We've changed the reporting system, so we're working
25	through that now. Response time still hovers right around



1 13 minutes until response time.

Update of the injured officers. Officer Waldis
Johnson is still recovering at a long-term care facility.
Officer Anthony Brown who was run over by a vehicle is
recovering at home. For James Kisselburg who suffered
gunshot wound is recuperating at home. Officer Eric Smith
suffered a gunshot wound as well; recuperating at home.
Sergeant Eric Bussi has a broken ankle. He's recuperating
at home. Officer Justin Marroquin received trauma to his
head. He's recuperating at home. Officer Christopher Bush
received some stitches to his right hand. He's
recuperating at home as well. Officer Christopher Thurston
was involved in a motorcycle accident not too long ago, and
he is also doing much much better recuperating. Officer
Lemuel Sims early this week was chasing a young man with a
pistol, and he thought he fell and broke both legs. Looks
like it's going to be ACLs in both knees. So he is I'm
not sure if that's better than broken bones or not, but
he's also resting at home. And then like you stated,
Chairperson, that this morning we lost officer James Hearn
in a tragic car accident. So, unfortunately, it is another
sad day for DPD. I got one other. Officer Robert Kovak
who was involved in a bad accident has returned back to
work in a restricted duty capacity.

On more of a bright side, like I mentioned

1	earlier, a promotional ceremony for our lieutenants and
2	sergeants tomorrow if all can attend. It's at 10:30 a.m.
3	at 14601 Dequindre at the Second Ebenezer Baptist Church.
4	Saturday we have a DPD Field Day over at Wayne
5	State University. It's from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
6	located 42 West Warren. With such events, it's a 5K walk &
7	run, three-on-three basketball, obstacle course, flag
8	football. It's a fun day for everyone. And then next week
9	we have a graduating class from the academy. Class of
10	2018F will be at 1:03 a.m. at 23500 West Seven Mile at the
11	Greater Grace Temple. And that is all I have.
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any questions
13	or concerns for the deputy chief?
14	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, I do.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.
16	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
17	I'd like to ask you, sir, regarding Neighborhood
18	Days; I've heard that Chief Craig is going to be involved
19	with that city-wide organization with Luther Keys of Rise
20	Detroit. Have you heard about that?
21	DC FITZGERALD: I do not know. Is someone here
22	from the chief's office?
23	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Somebody from chief's office
24	should know.



25

DC FITZGERALD: I'm getting a double shake of the

- 1 head no. So I can follow up on that for you.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. We've heard that
- 3 ourselves. I believe Chief Craig is supposed to be at
- 4 Number Eleven --
- DC FITZGERALD: Okay.
- 6 COMMISSIONER BURCH: -- on Nevada next Tuesday.
- 7 The time is 11:00 a.m. with Mr. Luther Keys. And anybody
- from, Mr. Chair, the Third District. So we want anybody
- 9 listening, Third District to show up next Tuesday at 11:00
- 10 a.m. on Nevada.
- 11 Thank you, sir.
- 12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair.
- 13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.
- 14 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I just want to get the
- 15 deputy chief, if you could point out all seven events
- 16 that's happening throughout the city of Detroit.
- 17 DC FITZGERALD: Gnashing that out.
- 18 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Yes.
- 19 DC FITZGERALD: Oh, boy, that would be -- again,
- 20 we have an event. We'll get you the event schedule for all
- of them. Most of the precincts have an event going.
- 22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay. That's more so for
- the audience.
- DC FITZGERALD: Yeah. No, absolutely, we'll get
- 25 it out. We blast it anyway. It should go across Facebook



1	and everything else, so
2	COMMISSIONER CARTER: So National Night Out is?
3	DC FITZGERALD: August 7th.
4	COMMISSIONER CARTER: August 7th.
5	DC FITZGERALD: Yeah.
6	COMMISSIONER CARTER: What time?
7	DC FITZGERALD: At all the precincts I believe it
8	starts at 5:30.
9	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.
10	DC FITZGERALD: Certainly.
11	COMMISSIONER BELL: I can highlight the Fifth
12	Precinct, because I'm part of the Fifth Precinct.
13	And we are going to be at the water park in
14	Chandler Park. And last year they had over a couple
15	thousand families to come out and able to utilize the water
16	park. And, you know, it's expensive for a family to come
17	out for any gathering of a water park. It's no cost. They
18	got great sponsors and great engagement. So if you're on
19	the eastside of Detroit we only want eastsiders coming.
20	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: You can forget that.
21	COMMISSIONER BELL: But it's going to be a great
22	event. They have food. They have games, and they can get
23	in the water. Hopefully it's going to be a nice day. Last
24	year it was just packed. And so look at that on your
25	schedule. All the policemen are participate, and the



Ι	competition is high. But I just wanted to highlight the
2	Fifth Precinct.
3	I know Eleven and Number Nine, they're all doing
4	some great things, as you mentioned, throughout the city of
5	Detroit. But if you want to get in the water then you need
6	to come to the water park in Chandler Park. It's a great
7	facility. It's one of the blessings of Wayne County on the
8	eastside of Detroit. In fact, it's part of the city of
9	Detroit. So I just want to mention that so you have the
10	date. Once again, only eastsiders are invited but the
11	other folks
12	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Everybody's invited.
13	COMMISSIONER BELL: You folks can drop in. They
L4	can come. Bring your swimming suit, you know. And also
15	it's just going to be a great day for that type of activity
16	throughout DPD in terms of community, especially the young
17	people and families. So that's really a blessing to all
18	concerned parties. Is that it, deputy chief?
19	DC FITZGERALD: Yes.
20	COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.
21	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.
22	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.
23	COMMISSIONER BURCH: If you would, I do have a
24	flyer for you gir



DC FITZGERALD: Wonderful.

25

1	COMMISSIONER BURCH: May I give it to you about
2	the Neighborhood Day?
3	DC FITZGERALD: Absolutely.
4	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Also another event is coming
5	up this Saturday.
6	DC FITZGERALD: I'll get it from you after.
7	COMMISSIONER BURCH: After.
8	DC FITZGERALD: Perfect.
9	COMMISSIONER BURCH: But I want the audience to
10	have this flyer.
11	DC FITZGERALD: Oh, absolutely.
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: Pass it around.
13	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Save one for him. Thank
14	you.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Moving on, next item
16	of business would be hearing from Dr. Paula McCalister, OCI
17	report. Thank you.
18	DR. MCCALISTER: Good afternoon again.
19	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Good afternoon.
20	DR. MCCALISTER: Okay, so every month we talk
21	about something different. We talked about our pool, our
22	Y, what we do, when we do it. Last month we talked about
23	working together. This month we're going to talk about are
24	we getting it right?
~ -	



25

In a recent study in Toronto, civilian oversight

1	it noted to really be effective we have to foster a
2	harmonious relationship with the police and the community.
3	And if you notice there's a check there because you're
4	doing that. We must be proactive with outreach efforts.
5	We're doing that. Provide a forum for citizens to voice
6	their concerns. We're doing that. Information must be
7	passed on to the police departments for either remedial or
8	preventive measures, and we're doing that. Create alliance
9	between the police and the community. We need to become
10	the mediators. The only thing that we're not doing is
11	always infer that simply because we have civilian oversight
12	does not mean that there's not a lack of trust. And we'll
13	start that next month. And do not opt out for only
14	civilian system but include police within investigative
15	process, which we do.
16	(Translated in Spanish)
17	DR. MCCALISTER: So are we ahead of other
18	civilian oversights or review boards?
19	Of the top 50 largest police departments 26 have
20	no civilian review boards or oversights. This leaves 23
21	million residents who do not have an avenue to file
22	complaints. While some do have a simple form of civilian
23	oversight, it does not extend beyond the local government.
24	The eight civilian review boards that are led by



a majority of non-mayoral nominees are Dallas, Miami-Dade,

1	Las Vegas, Atlanta, Indianapolis, Miami, Newark and
2	Albuquerque. Detroit has a police commission led by eleven
3	members, seven of whom are elected by the people of
4	Detroit. And this is a model that does not exist anywhere
5	else, so you should kind of like clap it up for yourself.
6	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.
7	DR. MCCALISTER: And currently there's not a lot
8	of research on civilian oversight. It's more of a review
9	board, so a lot of it we had to combine.
.0	(Translated in Spanish)
.1	DR. MCCALISTER: So here is our normal data that
.2	we present every month regarding our citizen complaints.
.3	We actually had a 22% decrease in citizen complaints for
_4	June. I think a lot of that has to do with the training.
.5	And then our meetings with Assistant Chief Williams; he
-6	takes the information, he contacts the command and kind of
_7	like tells them where they're deficient at so they can
-8	correct themselves. So we just don't keep repeating the
.9	same type of complaints.
20	(Translated in Spanish)
21	DR. MCCALISTER: So for our citizen's complaints
22	regarding member's behavior. We started this last month
23	tracking which command actually gets the complaints. AC
24	Williams also sent out a directive to address the



complaints regarding our unknowns. So if you see that 34

1	on there, we're actually working to bring that down.
2	OCI investigators have promptly identified 25 of
3	the 34 that we have received as unknowns. And we have 7 of
4	the 34 that are still being researched to identify the
5	officers.
6	(Translated in Spanish)
7	DR. MCCALISTER: This is just a graph for the
8	unknowns so that you can clearly see that of the ones that
9	we have identified were 25, and we have currently one that
LO	we have not been able to identify. So that just gives you
11	a graph so you can kind of really see it.
12	(Translated in Spanish)
13	DR. MCCALISTER: Now these are our CCR
14	allegations. In May we had 52 for procedure. If you
15	notice for procedure right now we're at 47. So that's a
16	good decrease. Demeanor we're up a couple, but we're going
L7	to continue working on that. And service we're just a
18	little high. But we hope, you know, as we continue to work
19	with the department we can bring those numbers down.
20	(Translated in Spanish)
21	DR. MCCALISTER: And this was started due from
22	Commissioner Bell about officers using profanity. We had a
23	couple of increases for June. But I think if we continue
24	to talk about it we'll relate to it. However, we are



adding offensive slurs which may deal with a race issue or

1	a gender issue. And we're going to start tracking that as
2	of next month. But we did want to include that.
3	COMMISSIONER BELL: Good.
4	(Translated in Spanish)
5	DR. MCCALISTER: So this is our electronic
6	evidence. Out of our complaints, 40 involved body worn
7	cameras, 13 involved in-car video. Thirty-one were
8	actually captured, nine were not, and three were
9	inconclusive. What we want to focus on for this month
10	moving forward and is to really encourage officers to wear
11	their body cameras. Because a lot of complaints that we
12	get in we're actually being able to do unfounded. Because
13	it's really proving that because of that body camera we
14	have actual proof that you did not do what the citizen
15	accused you of.
16	(Translated in Spanish)
17	DR. MCCALISTER: Now this is our seniority and
18	rank as far as complaints. For lieutenants we remain the
19	same for May. Sergeants we decrease by two. Officers with
20	one year or less, we are actually down by eleven
21	complaints. And I think a lot of that comes from the
22	training and constantly talking to them about what they
23	need to do and what they don't need to do. Officers with

25

two years, we're actually down two complaints. Officers

with ten to nineteen years, we're down nine complaints.

1	Officers with twenty to twenty-nine years, we're down four.
2	And officers with thirty years, we're actually up eight
3	complaints. I know it's bad.
4	(Translated in Spanish)
5	DR. MCCALISTER: And as always, we talk about our
6	goals. And the checks there lets you know that we are
7	doing this, so we are making progress.
8	I want to address language barriers, which we
9	will continue to do. Continue to build relationships with
.0	the Detroit Police Department. Continue to work with
.1	Assistant Chief Williams. What we'd like to do is create a
.2	mediation initiative. Research has proven it serves
.3	citizens better than actual complaints. Senior
_4	Investigator Moses will be doing a presentation next month.
.5	Develop a positive initiative yearly. We did that. We did
-6	the Think Before You Speak. AC William sent out a
.7	directive for all precinct to get involved, and we're
-8	supposed to get or their calendars monthly, so we're
.9	waiting on that. Continue to monitor the profanity
20	complaints for Commissioner Bell.
21	And our new thing for Chief Investigator's Office
22	is improve and inspire. So we always want to improve and
23	we always want to inspire. We had an intern, and she's
24	still here, named Mika Givens. She's not here today

because she goes to Cass Tech and they're starting their

1	SAT studies. But she came in and she wanted to do premed.
2	Well after a couple of weeks with me and Investigator Moses
3	she wants to become a police officer.
4	(APPLAUSE)
5	DR. MCCALISTER: So yep. So she sat down with
6	Assistant Chief Lashinda Stair and they had an awesome
7	conversation, but we wanted to open that up to the board.
8	We would love for you guys to try to spend some time with
9	her. We only have her Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday from
.0	9:00 to 2:00, but I can drive her to wherever you're at,
.1	and you can kind of like just explain your role and why you
.2	do what you do. She's interested in being a police
.3	officer, but she has aspirations of assistant chief or
_4	greater. So we really want to kind of like support her and
.5	watch her graduate and hopefully come on the job.
-6	At this time I really want to thank Murphy and
.7	Investigator Quick. Are you here? Could you stand,
.8	please. These two started the Think Before You Speak
_9	campaign along with Rosie. And they went out to the
20	precincts to speak, and I'm the still getting phone calls
21	about the job that they did. So I really want to thank

the officers and just giving them some overall good advice about how to keep your record clean.

them for taking the initiative, going out there, talking to

25 (APPLAUSE)

22

23

24

Т	DR. MCCALISTER: And I want to thank Rosie for
2	standing up here interpreting this for me. It's important
3	that we try to address all the barriers with our community
4	so that they feel included with our process.
5	In your package you have a couple of sheets of
6	paper. It talks about getting it right. If you look at
7	the other review boards and although you're not a review
8	board, if you do a comparison we are so far ahead of other
9	civilian oversights and review boards. And this should
10	make you really feel good about what you do, because you
11	are ahead. Do we have any questions?
12	COMMISSIONER BURCH: You said we are ahead?
13	DR. MCCALISTER: You are ahead, yes.
14	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Unique.
15	DR. MCCALISTER: You are rather unique too. If
16	you read through this, you can kind of see how far ahead we
17	actually are.
18	Any questions?
19	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Chair, if I may.
20	COMMISSIONER BELL: Questions.
21	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: I believe that we have
22	the last page that Rosie did not interpret. And I think
23	it's important, because it has all your points there.
24	(Last portion of report interpreted in Spanish)
25	DR. MCCALISTER: Excellent job. Excellent job.



1	Thank you.
2	(APPLAUSE)
3	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any questions
4	or concerns for the chief investigator?
5	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Just a comment to say
6	fantastic job Investigator McCalister.
7	DR. MCCALISTER: Thank you.
8	COMMISSIONER BURCH: And Investigator Rosie. Is
9	it Rosie or Rosa?
10	DR. MCCALISTER: Rosie.
11	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Rosie. Excellent job. Just
12	want to thank you, and thanks for taking our comments to
13	put on your checklist.
14	DR. MCCALISTER: Oh, yes. I listen.
15	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Because we work together.
16	It's wonderful. God bless.
17	DR. MCCALISTER: Absolutely. Thank you.
18	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. I just want to
19	convey to our graduating promotion class, I hope that you
20	got something out of this. As we have opportunity to speak
21	to you, you got a firsthand insight in terms of the work of
22	the Board, especially the Office of the Chief Investigator,
23	because you are going to be in close contact, especially
24	with the newly promoted sergeants, that type of
25	interaction. So we want to make sure that you understand



1	the process, why the citizen complaint process is so
2	critical to the community in Detroit and most urban cities.
3	And I've been engaging since 1974 when the first body was
4	by the city charter and Mayor Coleman Young installed the
5	first panel of five individuals. So we continue on that
6	path.

There's a distinct difference between a review board and the board that we have in Detroit. And we're now in an electoral process. As I emphasize to you that you need to read the city charter. You really need to understand the city charter, the mandate of this Board of Police Commissioners and also DPD. In the city charter it covers those areas that you should be familiar with. I know sergeant wants to make lieutenant, lieutenant wants to make captain and etc., etc. So you need to just continue to educate yourself as far as what's happening in our community, especially the issues that we're dealing with and why people -- if there's an outlet for them then they can respond. And we're trying to drive down that gap. And we're also trying to be customer friendly.

The language that you hear, the F word is no part of communicating. I'm pretty sure as chief investigator you can advance, go to the dictionary and get your point across in other manners. So that's what we're trying to emphasize. Customer service is crucial. And if you drive



1	a certain car, you know, if you go to a certain dealer you
2	get special service. Well I feel as though everybody in
3	Detroit is entitled to special service, VIP treatment
4	whether you live in Palmer Park or Bewick or eastside or
5	west side.
6	You are very fortunate to be in these positions
7	as first line supervisors. My highest rank was lieutenant.
8	And so sergeants and lieutenants, I know you're go to be
9	dealing with the troops, right? So you have the
10	opportunity to have a moral impact because you're there
11	24/7 in some capacity, so we want your lead. Now all I
12	have to say tomorrow is congratulations. I already gave
13	you my speech.
14	But we can move right on to the next item will
15	be Advanced Police Technologies. One of our favorite. My
16	former
17	COMMANDER BLISS: It's the Fifth Precinct.
18	COMMISSIONER BELL: Fifth Precinct. It says that
19	right there.
20	COMMANDER BLISS: Good afternoon, Board.
21	THE BOARD: Good afternoon.
22	COMMANDER BLISS: Good afternoon, Deputy Chief
23	Fitzgerald. I'm commander Mark Bliss, Office Support
24	Operations. I'm here to present to you today on Advance



Police Technologies. Originally Assistant Chief White was

1	to give this presentation, but he is off today on personal
2	business. But he did go over this topic with me, and I am
3	prepared to answer any questions that you may have. But as
4	always, if I cannot answer it, I will get you a response in
5	a timely manner.

Before I start I just want to single out two people who were critical in putting this together. So the first one, Captain Karey Sloan. Captain Karey Sloan; that is Realtime Crime. Ladies and gentlemen, Realtime Crime. There are so many times that I have to go to her ask questions; how do we do this? How do whoa do this? and she'll give me an explanation. And then I'll say, can you dumb it down for me a bit? So then she will give me well the dumber version. I'll contemplate it, and I'll say can you dumb it down even more for me, and then I'll finally get it.

The second person is Mr. Neal Tomby (Phonetic).

Mr. Neal Tomby, he's our technology guy. He's a University of Michigan grad. Please don't hold that against him. I didn't. And I'm Spartan, but we still talk. But, you know, when we try to dream up, we try to use technology we need people like that to say, yes, we can do it; this is how you do it. And then in certain cases he can confuse us even more. So it's very helpful. But today we're going to be looking at three areas that technology has assisted us

1	with crime and with quality of life issues.
2	The first one, the obvious one, Project Green
3	Light. We all know what Project Green Light is, but I'll
4	give you a brief example, a little bit of an overview on
5	it.
6	In late 2015 there was a problem identified. A
7	disproportionate number of violent crimes occurred at or
8	near gas stations or liquor stores from about 10:00 p.m. to
9	8:00 a.m. So we started to see that. What did we do? We
10	had a solution for it. We used technology and we launched
11	in 2016 the Project Green Light Detroit. It was a
12	partnership with local businesses to improve neighborhood
13	safety, to increase police presence, deterrence and high
14	quality video Livestream from the business to DPD,
15	specifically realtime crime.
16	So what did it do? What was the impact of that?
17	That technology, putting those high definition cameras out
18	there, allowed us to the impact from 2018 a 39%
19	year-to-date violent crime reduction when you compare the
20	crimes from 2015 to 2018.
21	Success story under Project Green Light. We had
22	a hit-and-run. We responded to a fatal hit-and-run scene
23	on July 17th at West Seven Mile Road. While monitoring the
24	computer aided dispatch crime intel observed this



25

hit-and-run minutes after it occurred. On your upper left

Page 35

of the screen you can see the vehicle that it was right
after the hit-and-run. It's the one that's circled in red.
The analyst quickly identified the vehicle at a different
Green Light location that matched the description. Through
further investigation the suspect was arrested on the 19th
of July, two days later, and charged with failure to stop
at a scene of a serious personal injury accident.

Another success story. Project Green Light; we responded to a shooting, a stabbing call on Memorial Day on May 28th. At that time crime intel and Homicide analyzed video from a Green Light location. Video evidence to identify the suspect and his license plate. You can see on your left a picture of the vehicle with the license plate obscured, and then you can see on your right a picture of the suspect. Through Project Green Light and the video we were able to identify that suspect who was arrested on the 18th and charged homicide. So two success stories just on utilizing that technology in Project Green Light.

Another issue, quality of life issue. And we all -- let's go back. Quality of life issue. Dumping.

Illegal dumping. We all know that throughout our precincts, throughout the city we have illegal dumping. We identified each week that workers from the city's Detroit Public Works remove about 500 tons of illegally dumped materials across the city.

1	What is 500 tons? So let me give you a
2	comparison of what that would be. It would be about the
3	weight of 250 automobiles. In one week 250 automobiles,
4	that type of tonnage.
5	What did we do? We took the same technology. We
6	used those high definition videos. We installed it in
7	those areas where we saw that there was a lot of illegal
8	dumping. We did it covertly. We were able then throughout
9	the city to identify and prosecute people who dumped
_0	illegally in Detroit. The impact? Since July of 2017 till
.1	now we have issued about \$73,000 in fine, arrested 53
.2	individuals, and we have seized about 80 vehicles.
.3	(APPLAUSE)
_4	COMMANDER BLISS: Success story for our illegal
.5	dumping. On the 27th of June Realtime Crime observed a
<u>.</u> 6	vehicle discarding waste from a trailer. Realtime Crime
.7	called Communications and notified patrol officers who were
.8	out on routine patrol who responded to this location and
.9	arrested the driver who was from Redford Township on scene.
20	They also issued a violation for littering and his vehicle
21	was impounded. The passenger who was from Detroit was also
22	issued a blight ticket.
23	Now since we are using technology, let's see if
24	it works. Ladies and gentlemen. Or not. Moving on.



Moving on.

25

1	Another success story. Again, Realtime Crime
2	observed a subject dumping on the city's westside. Members
3	of our department's General Assignment Unit conducted an
4	investigation and identified the subject who was from
5	Detroit. He was arrested, issued violations, and his
6	vehicle was impounded. He pled guilty and was find \$1,700
7	for illegal dumping.
8	And finally, if I could get there. Finally I
9	want to change views, and I want to look at Communications,
10	our 9-1-1 operators.
11	This is a quality of life issue. It has to deal
12	with when someone calls in with a medical emergency to our
13	9-1-1 operators. Our previous practice was they would call
14	in, they have a medical emergency, we would ask random
15	questions. And then if we got enough information, we would
16	send an EMS rig out there.
17	Well we took a good hard look at that. Is that
18	the best way to do that? Is that what other large cities
19	do? Is that what is the national protocol? We felt it
20	wasn't. So what we did was we implemented ProQA for calls
21	which guides call takers through questions to better
22	understand the victim's continue condition.
23	So ProQA it's more than a computer program. What
24	it does is it gives it was developed by a doctor. Let

25

me give you some background. It was the developed by a

doctor;	protocol	how to	ask	cei	rta:	in s	pecific	quest	cions	in	а
certain	order.	So what	you	do	is	you	filter	down	getti	ing	
to the	root of a	proble	em.								

And how does that help us? It helps us because as you know we have the rigs, EMS response, all across the city. But there's different type of resources in each of those rigs. So what we never want to do is send EMS to a location and we don't have the resources to handle that problem. This eliminates that. You ask those questions. We know exactly what to send, and then we send it so you get exactly what you need for your medical emergency.

But how do we do that? Instead of randomly asking questions, each of our 9-1-1 callers has these types of books (Indicating). They get trained. This training is ongoing. As a matter of fact, I talked to one ProQA person and they indicated that they've been doing this for four years. And due to the updates to the protocols and whatnot that there's always something to learn.

But they go through this book. And I will -- you can see the book after my presentation. They go through this book, and they're able to identify and they're able to give specific instructions based on the answers that they get to stabilize that individual while they're getting the resources to that person. And what does that do? Cuts down on time and gets you what you need. Because in an

1	emergency every minute counts.
2	So a perfect example of this, our last success
3	story, May 6, 2018 a 9-1-1 operator receives a call from a
4	citizen needing emergency assistance from her mother who is
5	experiencing life-threatening symptoms. Utilizing the
6	ProQA protocol, the operator provided time sensitive life
7	saving instructions. Additionally, the operator's
8	instructions to the caller stabilized the mother until help
9	arrived.
10	So what they actually did is while EMS was en
11	route they were actually the operator was actually
12	working with the person, with the caller, to give CPR to
13	make sure that the timing and the breaths were coming in.
14	And that person did recover from that. So those are just
15	three areas where we have utilized technology in order to
16	not only combat crimes but to work on quality of life
17	issues.
18	Any questions?
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, questions or
20	comments?
21	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, sir. I just want to
22	commend you, because I think it's great when you catch
23	these people that are coming into our cities, especially
24	the dumping. The Green Light is excellent, but I just want



25

to ask you one question. Where does the money -- you know,

1	when you collected the what do you call it? I'm trying
2	to think. When they're caught and they're find, right
3	COMMANDER BLISS: Yes.
4	COMMISSIONER BURCH: where does that money go?
5	COMMANDER BLISS: It goes back into the general
6	fund.
7	COMMISSIONER BURCH: What's the general fund?
8	COMMANDER BLISS: It goes back to the city.
9	COMMISSIONER BURCH: You know why I say that?
10	'Cause we've I say that? Because we've been hearing that
11	about public schools, a general fund. So I just think
12	people need to know exactly what mean by general fund. You
13	know, where is it going.
14	COMMANDER BLISS: Through the Chair. What I can
15	do is I can actually get that information for you.
16	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Break it down.
17	COMMANDER BLISS: Yes, ma'am.
18	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: Break it down.
20	Any other commissioners?
21	Thank you. Outstanding reporting out.
22	COMMANDER BLISS: I do apologize for the
23	technology issues. As you know, technology has a mind of
24	it's own sometimes.



25

COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes indeed. Appreciate it

1	that we have made these advancements, and we're still
2	making progress. I'm just impressed what I have witnessed
3	the last five years sitting here in terms of how we're
4	operating now versus back in 1902.
5	COMMANDER BLISS: We're just getting started.
6	COMMISSIONER BELL: But Commander Bliss, you
7	always and he really was an excellent captain at the
8	precinct. We had the ground breaking at the precinct. You
9	ran that precinct and very observant in terms of the
10	interaction with the people there. And happy to see you in
11	the rank of commander and wish you the best. Thank you.
12	COMMANDER BLISS: Thank you, sir.
13	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: You got a lot of history
14	don't you, man? 1902?
15	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I would like to compliment
16	our staff. Whoever sends out a list of where the Green
17	Lights are, thank you. Because a lot of times people will
18	ask you if they find out if you're a police commissioner,
19	you know, we want to shop where there's a Green Light. We
20	want to go to a drug store or a gas station. So thanks to
21	the staff for giving us a list of where all the Green
22	Lights are, and they keep it up to date.
23	COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Moving on to the next
24	item would be any standing ad hoc committee reports at this
25	time.



1	I do want I always want to hear from
2	Commissioner Brooks in terms of some remarks about
3	recruiting. I think that's always appropriate that we sort
4	of share that, especially with our audience that's watching
5	us. So can you make some comments about recruiting.
6	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: The only comments I have to
7	make is that we're moving ahead. We have a meeting with
8	Recruiting for the first of August; field recruiting. And
9	we have a meeting with OCI, the 14th of August, which is
10	being very helpful and helping us to go out and recruit.
11	And I'm not going to tell you anymore because
12	some great things are going on. We're really, really
13	organizing so that we can get out there and help the field
14	recruiters to get a job done so that we can recruit the
15	best police officers that we can recruit. So I'm looking
16	forward to our meeting, our goals and strategies we're
17	putting together, and we're going to make this goal. Thank
18	you.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: I'd like to have one more
20	comment. Commissioner Brooks, you know, should our
21	sergeants and lieutenants be recruiting.
22	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Should our
23	COMMISSIONER BELL: Sergeants and lieutenants.
24	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Oh, yes. My gosh. When

you leave here you are recruiters. In church, wherever you

1	go, please talk about recruiting. It's really, really a
2	good thing. So all of you out there are recruiters. Go to
3	church, tell them about them. At home you might have
4	friends, relatives
5	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: In the bar. Everywhere.
6	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I don't know about the bar.
7	We don't want them from the bar. But any place we really
8	really thank you all.
9	COMMISSIONER BELL: Well Commissioner Brooks is
10	not aware of our activities socially throughout the city of
11	Detroit. We are not restricted, so we are in the bars and
12	inspection and etc., etc. But I know you're going to be
13	highlighting your newly promoted rank. So you can somewhat
14	mention about recruiting that you have arrived as sergeant
15	and lieutenants. So I want to tie that in. Because
16	everybody's going to know you've been newly promoted, your
17	family and loved one, right?
18	OFFICERS: Right.
19	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Thank you.
20	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.
21	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.
22	COMMISSIONER BURCH: I want to commend
23	Ms. Blossom I don't think she's here and Mr. Hicks.
24	They put together this community newsletter that went to

25

all of the districts. I know I was more impressed by it

1	because I received more calls because they were aware.
2	Hey, you mean that lady is over here in this district? So
3	the map that they showed did everybody out there get
4	these in their neighborhood?
5	UNKNOWN SPEAKER: No.
6	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Who said no?
7	UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Ms inaudible
8	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Well you're going to get it
9	Does it come out monthly.
10	MR. HICKS: No. No.
11	COMMISSIONER BURCH: What quarterly?
12	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Me or my residents, we
13	haven't received one of those newsletters.
14	COMMISSIONER BELL: Well we can not at this
15	time we cannot mail to the entire city, so it does not
16	reflect the entire city. But hopefully in the future as
17	our budget increases we can do more. I don't know, but
18	there was a significant number that went out. And I know
19	when we met with Chief Craig on Tuesday afternoon his
20	father got one. He was parading that and say, hey, I see
21	you in this community paper here. So we can do better in
22	the future.
23	COMMISSIONER BURTON: But through the Chair, if
24	we have a if we have a community newsletter that's
25	supposed to go out to Detroit residents, how come it's not



Τ	reaching all of our constituents?
2	I have talked to residents from various
3	districts. They received the community news letter, but my
4	residents have not received it. I would like to know where
5	this newsletter went out, what districts did it go out to,
6	and why District 5 was missed.
7	MR. HICKS: Mr. Chair.
8	COMMISSIONER BELL: If Mr. Hicks
9	MR. HICKS: Yes. If I can and I don't want to
10	try to get too detailed in this.
11	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.
12	MR. HICKS: What we do is we take essentially the
13	city of Detroit's voter list. We household that list,
14	because they're in a household there are anywhere from
15	two to five individuals or whatever in a household. We
16	household it down so that we mail to the top person on that
17	list, and it goes directly to their household.
18	This particular mailing went to all of the
19	districts. I am a member I'm a resident of District 5.
20	I did receive such a mailing. And several individuals on
21	my block and people I'm in communication have already fed
22	back that they received it. One of them even came up with
23	a suggestion in terms of how we can improve it and so
24	forth. So there's a certain amount of information that's
25	out there that's feedback and so forth.



Page 46

Whatever you're household on that list reducing
it from its largest number. In our case our voter records
may contain something like 400,000 individuals. That gets
household down to about 150,000. And that's the base group
that we mail to. In those situations, yes, there may be
some omissions, but that's not the rule. We are it's to
our advantage to try to reach out to everyone in the
community. And as far as we can know, people are receiving
this.

We would like to know if there are blocks of people in a community that is not receiving it. We would like to know that. Because what we would do is go back and check the original list that we're using to make sure that that list is being updated properly and so forth.

COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, I just want to say that we should not show any favoritism and nepotism from this body as far as when we're talking about a community newsletter when we are a body that has a Board that has a \$4 million budget. I'd like to see in an email or something in writing where this newsletter circulated in District 5, because my residents have not received this newsletter. I'm out in the community. You know, but we hear that folks in District 1, District 6, District 7 all received the newsletter. My residents, my neighbors, including myself, we have not seen this newsletter.

1	COMMISSIONER BELL: Well, Commissioner Burton,
2	it's been duly noted. And this is a District 5 resident.
3	But I know everybody did not receive one throughout the
4	city of Detroit. But this is rather historic. This is the
5	second mailing of this nature, so we have come a long way.
6	Prior to that it was no mailing at all, so we've come a
7	long way in terms of trying to reach. But it's not
8	practical to say we're going to reach every household in
9	the city of Detroit. Even the city clerk is not able to
10	achieve that because of so many issues. But it's been duly
11	noted.
12	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, we had I
13	guess you all hired someone to do GSI or something or
14	whatever that's looking at voter data. You know, I'd like
15	to know where this I think all of the commissioners
16	would like to know for their districts where this mailer
17	actually who it reached in their district. Because my
18	neighbors, once again, have not received it. I talk with
19	seniors daily. None of them have received it. We're
20	hearing about it on social media, I mean, with I guess
21	Commissioner Davis here, you know, talked about the good
22	news about the news letters. My residents have not
23	received it.
24	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And a lot of my neighbors
25	received it.

Τ	COMMISSIONER BURTON: And mine haven't.
2	COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, it's duly noted, sir.
3	We're going to move on and you can talk to Mr. Hicks
4	offline.
5	MR. HICKS: Mr. Chair, what we can do is we can
6	simply pull the receipt that we received from the post
7	office which breaks down the mailings into zip codes, and I
8	can verify through their receipt what zip codes were mailed
9	to. I cannot break it down to the individual street. I
10	mean, we could but that would take a great amount of energy
11	in order to do that. But we can verify what zip codes that
12	these mailings went to.
13	COMMISSIONER BELL: I think the majority of
14	commissioners are pleased that we have taken this
15	extraordinary step to mail out. And like I stated, we
16	can't reach 100%, but we've given it a good start and we've
17	come a long way. So let us move on to the next item and
18	Mr. Hicks.
19	MR. HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just simply
20	under the my report, wanted to call your attention to
21	two items. And both of the items are listed on the agenda.
22	And these are again items for your information. It's not
23	necessarily for your action. One of them Deputy Chief
24	Fitzgerald has already reported on, and that was the
25	communications inviting you to attend the 2018-F



1	graduation.
2	And then the second item that's listed on here is
3	that the Board in it's official capacity and I believe
4	the City of Detroit and probably the Chief's Office
5	received a summons yesterday in a case that this is the
6	case that involved Commander Leach. And what we do with a
7	summons like that is simply turn that summons over to the
8	city's Law Department, and the city's Law Department then
9	represents our interest moving forward. But you need to
10	know that the item is in there. And in your package, for
11	those who wanted to just generally keep up with the case,
12	there is a one page summary.
13	I'll just summarize it. And I'll just remind you
14	that this one page summary represents a summation of the
15	plaintiff's work. It's not necessarily both sides of it;
16	it's only what the complaint is alleging. So that summary
17	is in your package so that you if you want to read it you
18	can keep abreast of it as a topic. And that would conclude
19	any report that I would have this evening.
20	COMMISSIONER BELL: Any questions or concern to
21	the board secretary?
22	If not we move on to old business. Any old
23	business?
24	Any new business?
25	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Excuse me.



1	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.
2	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Would new business be the
3	cleanup we're doing in the Third District since it's going
4	to be this Saturday? Would that be directed in that?
5	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.
6	COMMISSIONER BURCH: I would like to invite
7	everybody, especially the listening audience, that you are
8	invite from the District 3 major cleanup on Stender. This
9	is on the eastside of the Detroit, Stender and Dequindre.
10	We're asking for big bulldozers. That this is a horrific
11	spot on the corner of the Stender and Dequindre. That we
12	have the Wayne State University students as volunteers
13	coming out. So if we already have 60 volunteers. We need
14	60 more. Because this is a horrific, like I said, terrible
15	corner. So we're asking all of you to come out this
16	Saturday. We start at 8:00 a.m. until it's completed.
17	So if we have the big bulldozers, they come
18	Friday. Okay? And then the volunteers come Saturday.
19	Okay? So if you know somebody that has heavy equipment,
20	please send them my way. Give them my number. This is the
21	Third District, Eleventh Precinct, and your Commissioner
22	Shirley Burch. Thank you.
23	COMMISSIONER BELL: PSA announcement.
24	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.
25	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Which we're doing a lot more



- of, Public Service Announcements.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Outstanding. Thank you.
- 3 Thank you.
- 4 Any other new business? Announcements?
- 5 The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday August
- 6 2, 2018 right here at 3:00 p.m. the Public Safety Building,
- 7 1301 Third Street. And -- right date, right? On August
- 8 the 9th would be the community meeting, And that's going to
- 9 be at 6:30 p.m. That's in the Fifth Precinct at Northeast
- 10 Guidance Center, Wellness Academy Building A, 2900 Conners.
- 11 That's just south of Mack. Just south of the Fifth
- 12 Precinct. So that's going to be the location for the
- community meeting in the month of August.
- 14 The next item will be oral communication from the
- 15 public. You have two minutes. Mr. Brown is going to call
- 16 you up. Please give your name and your concern. You have
- 17 two minutes. Mr. Brown is going to hold a card, and I hope
- 18 that you'll respect the process. It's a privilege. It's
- 19 not a right. So we want to give you that opportunity at
- this particular time.
- 21 MR. BROWN: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I have one card.
- 22 Ms. Faith.
- 23 MS. FAITH: Got the laptop left up on here like
- I'm going to make a presentation. Welcome, to the Board.
- 25 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Can you pull the mic down.



1	MS. FAITH: Can they hear me?
2	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yes, ma'am.
3	MS. FAITH: Okay. Welcome, to the Board. And
4	for the record, my name is Ms. Faith. I want to welcome
5	everyone here, including the commissioners and all of you,
6	and the guest. I thank God for being here. I'm glad to
7	hear everyone's report and enjoyed hearing what I heard.
8	The same thing goes this time as usual. Everybody is
9	treated with respect and dignity. And as they continue to
10	take care not to do anything to the self image as you do,
11	you respect people's self image when you're speaking and
12	when they're speaking. If there's a grievance, even in the
13	task, it's always with dignity and respect to person's
14	treated with patience, especially elders like myself.
15	And I was going to say a lot of different things.
16	There was went to visit the hospital. I had
17	yesterday I had another stroke I believe because one side
18	of my face is dragging and drooping. Same symptoms came up
19	again. And the doctor the last time I was in emergency
20	said there was no stroke, but one side of my face is not
21	cooperating with the other side. It's overcompensating to
22	one side, and so I want to speak to someone about that.
23	And I have only one minute left. So I want to
24	proceed with the other part of the things that I wanted to
25	comment on. There was a blackout last night at the



1	building that I was at. I commend the officers at the
2	precinct of the Fifth Precinct. They were standing by and
3	they were helping and doing what they could do. There was
4	no need for EMS to come, but by morning the lights were
5	back on, and I was very appreciative of 9-1-1 and the
6	officers being there. There was black in this
7	neighborhood. And the work that they did to help me to get
8	to DTE and so that the people there there are elderly
9	people in wheelchairs and scooters. Some can't speak,
10	couldn't get down the elevator. There was blackness
11	everywhere. But by morning there was the light and the
12	power was restored. So I just want to commend the Fifth
13	Precinct for standing by the 9-1-1 and how they facilitated
14	all the help that they needed to have at the time for the
15	people there as well as for myself. Thank you all very
16	much.
17	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Ms. Faith. Thank
18	you. Thank you.
19	That's the completion of the public
20	participation. I do see the young man from help me out.
21	UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Councilman Ayars.
22	COMMISSIONER BELL: Ayers. Could I get your
23	name.
24	MR. RECORD: Hello I'm Jerome Record (Phonetic),
25	community liaison for At-Large council member Janee' Ayers.



1	COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for your
2	attendance.
3	MR. RECORD: Thank you.
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: If there's no other business
5	the Chair would entertain a motion. But I'll say once
6	again, thank you for the class that's coming out tomorrow.
7	And we wish you the best, and we hope to see you tomorrow.
8	And thank you, the audience, for your participation, and
9	the staff. So this is a good time to adjourn.
10	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Move for adjournment.
11	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Support.
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been moved and
13	supported.
14	Discussion? Those in favor aye.
15	THE BOARD: Aye.
16	COMMISSIONER BELL: We stand adjourned. Thank
17	you.
18	(At 4:19 p.m., proceeding conclude)
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1	CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY
2	CTATE OF MICHICAN )
3	STATE OF MICHIGAN ) )
4	COUNTY OF WAYNE )
5	I, Donna R. Williams, Certified Shorthand Reporter,
6	a Notary Public in and for the above county and state, do
7	hereby certify that the above deposition was taken before
8	me at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that the
9	witness was by me first duly sworn to testify to the
L O	truth, and nothing but the truth; that the foregoing
.1	questions asked and answers made by the witness were duly
_2	recorded by me stenographically and reduced to computer
L3	transcription; that this is a true, full and correct
4	transcript of my stenographic notes so taken. I further
L5	certify that I am not related to, nor of counsel to
L6 L7	either party, nor interested in the event of the cause
L8	Q R. Millons
L9	
20	DONNA R. WILLIAMS, CSR 6253
21	
22	Mr. Commiggion cyminog 0/15/2022
23	My Commission expires 9/15/2022
24	



25

A
a.m18:2,5,10 19:7,10 34:9 50:16
a.m.18.2,5,10
19:7,10 34:9
50:16
<b>able</b> 20:15 25:10
26:12 35:16
36:8 38:21,21
47:9
abreast 49:18
absolutely 10:14
19:24 22:3,11
30:17
AC 24:23 27:16
<b>academy</b> 14:22
18:9 51:10
<b>accident</b> 3:19,20
17:13,21,23
35:7
accountability
11:21
accused 26:15
achieve 47:10
acknowledge 16:8
ACLs 17:17
action 48:23
activities 43:10
activity 21:15
<b>actual</b> 26:14
27:13
<b>ad</b> 41:24
<b>adding</b> 25:25
additional 10:21
Additionally
39 <b>:</b> 7
<b>address</b> 13:22
24:24 27:8
29:3
addressing 13:10
adjourn 54:9
adjourned 54:16
adjournment
54:10
administrative
8:23
advance 31:23
32:24
Advanced 12:2
32:15
advancements
41:1
advantage 46:7
advice 28:23

afternoon 3:5,6	appreciate 10:
3:8 4:22,23	40:25
6:17,18 7:7	Appreciation
8:15 16:10	15:8
22:18,19 32:20	appreciative
32:21,22 44:19	53:5
afternoon's 5:6	approaches 13
agenda 5:6 12:4	appropriate 42
13:23 48:21	approve 5:5
<b>ago</b> 8:4 17:13	12:12
<b>ahead</b> 14:18	areas 31:13
23:17 29:8,11	33:25 36:7
29:12,13,16	39:15
42:7	Arnold 7:3
<b>aided</b> 34:24	arrested 35:5
Albuquerque 24:2	36:11,19 37:
<b>All-Star</b> 15:5	Arrests 15:7
allegations	arrived 39:9
25:14	43:14
alleging 49:16	<b>asked</b> 4:1 55:1
alliance 23:8	asking 38:13
<b>allow</b> 7:15	50:10,15
<b>allowed</b> 34:18	aspirations
<b>allows</b> 11:20	28:13
<b>amount</b> 45:24	<b>Assault</b> 15:7
48:10	<b>asset</b> 15:17
analysis 12:23	assignment 14
12:25	14:8 37:3
analyst 35:3	assignments 14
analyzed 35:10	14:3,4
<b>ankle</b> 17:8	assistance 39
announcement	assistant 7:3
50:23	24:15 27:11
Announcements	28:6,13 32:2
51:1,4	assisted 33:25
annual 12:9,10	
answer 12:21	assure 13:7
13:6 33:3,4 answering13:19	<b>At-Large</b> 2:5,6 4:5,6,8 53:2
answers 38:22	Atlanta 24:1
55:11	attempting 12:
	attend 18:2
Anthony 17:4 anybody 19:7,8	48:25
anymore 42:11	attendance 3:1
anyway 19:25	9:19 15:4 16
apologize 40:22	54:2
appeal 11:21	ATTENDEES 3:6
appear 12:4	attending 6:20
APPLAUSE 8:2	9:14 10:9
28:4,25 30:2	attention 6:8
26.12	40.20

appreciate 10:13
40:25
Appreciation
15:8
appreciative
53:5
approaches 13:5
appropriate 42:3
approve 5:5
12:12
<b>areas</b> 31:13
33:25 36:7
39:15
Arnold 7:3
arrested 35:5.16
36:11,19 37:5
36:11,19 37:5 Arrests 15:7
arrived 39:9
43:14
asked 4:1 55:11
asking 38:13
50:10,15
aspirations
28:13
Assault 15:7
<b>asset</b> 15:17
assignment 14:7
14:8 37:3
assignments 14:2
14:3,4
assistance 39:4
assistant 7:3
24.1E 27.11
24:15 27:11 28:6,13 32:25
<b>assisted</b> 33:25
assisted 33.45
assume 8:5 assure 13:7
assure 13: /
At-Large 2:5,6,7
4:5,6,8 53:25
Atlanta 24:1
attempting 12:14
attend 18:2
48:25
attendance 3:11
9:19 15:4 16:9
54:2
ATTENDEES 3:6
attending 6:20
0 • 1 1 1 1 • 0

audience 9:22
10:9 19:23
22:9 42:4 50:7
54:8
0 - 0
<b>audio</b> 6:6
August 20:3,4
42:8,9 51:5,7
51:13
authority 12:17
<pre>automobile 3:19</pre>
<pre>automobiles 36:3</pre>
36:3
<b>avenue</b> 23:21
award 15:4,5,5,6
15:6,15
<b>aware</b> 43:10 44:1
awesome 28:6
<b>Ayars</b> 53:21
<b>aye</b> 5:11,11,12
5:22,23 16:3,4
54:14,15
Ayers 53:22,25
В

В
back 14:11 15:1 17:23 35:20 40:5,8 41:4 45:22 46:12 53:5
background 8:23
37:25
bad 17:23 27:3 Badge 3:17
balance 6:16
14:4
Baptist 18:3
<b>bar</b> 43:5,6,7
barriers 27:8
29:3
bars 43:11
base 46:4
Baseball 15:5
based 38:22
basic 12:21
basketball 18:7
began 14:22
<b>beginning</b> 7:14 14:13
<b>behalf</b> 3:11,15 10:15
behavior 24:22
believe 19:3

48:20

attorney 6:13

36:13

appointed 14:21

20:7 29:21
49:3 52:17
Bell 2:3 3:5,7,8 3:23 4:13,17
3:23 4:13,17
5:4,9,13,19,24 7:1,6,9,20 8:3
/:1,6,9,20 8:3
8:8,13,18 9:1 9:4,8,10,17
10:1 5 12 15
10:1,5,12,15 15:22,25 16:5
18:12,15 19:13
20:11,21 21:13
21:20,22 22:12
22:15 25:22
26:3 27:20
29:20 30:3,18
32:18 39:19 40:19,25 41:6 41:23 42:19,23
40.19,25 41.6
43:9.19.21
43:9,19,21 44:14 45:8,11 47:1 48:2,13
47:1 48:2,13
49:20 50:1,5
49:20 50:1,5 50:23 51:2
53:17,22 54:1
54:4,12,16
best 11:13 37:18 41:11 42:15
54:7
better 17:14,18
27:13 37:21
44:21
<b>Bewick</b> 32:4
<b>beyond</b> 13:20
23:23
<b>big</b> 9:5 50:10,17
<b>bit</b> 10:1 33:13
34:4 <b>black</b> 53:6
blackness 53:10
blackout 52:25
<b>blast</b> 19:25
<b>bless</b> 30:16
blessing 21:17
blessings 21:7
blight 36:22
Bliss 32:17,20
32:22,23 36:14
40:3,5,8,14,17 40:22 41:5,6
41:12
block 45:21
- <del>-</del>

blocks 46:10 Blossom 43:23 board 1:7 2:12 3:9,11,15 4:23 5:11,12,23 6:2 6:13,14,17,18 8:11 9:13,14 10:16,18,23 11:7,9,16,24 12:6,9,11 13:12 14:5,7 15:20 16:4 24:9 28:7 29:8 30:22 31:8,8 31:11 32:20,21 46:18 49:3,21 51:24 52:3 54:15 boards 23:18,20 23:24 29:7,9 body 26:6,11,13 31:3 46:17,18 bones 17:18 bones 17:18 book 38:19,20,21 books 38:14 Bowl 15:6 Bowser 8:15,16 8:20 9:3,7,9 9:16 boy 19:19 Brad 8:15 break 40:16,19	
48:9 breaking 41:8 breaks 48:7 breaths 39:13 Brenda 9:25 10:4 Bridget 6:9 brief 8:10 34:4 bright 17:25 bring 11:16     21:14 25:1,19 broke 17:16 broken 17:8,18 Brooks 2:7 4:8,8     22:19 41:15     42:2,6,20,22     42:24 43:6,9 Brown 2:13 3:25     6:11 14:12     17:4 51:15,17	

budget 12:12 44:17 46:19
<b>build</b> 27:9 <b>building</b> 51:6,10
53:1
bulldozers 50:10
50:17
Burch 2:8 4:9,9 15:24 18:14,16
18:23 19:2,6
21:21,23 22:1
22:4,7,9,13
24:6 29:12
30:5,8,11,15
39:21 40:4,7,9
40:16,18 43:20
43:22 44:6,8
44:11 49:25 50:2,6,22,24
Burton 2:9 16:9
44:12,23 46:15
47:1,12 48:1
Bush 17:10
<b>business</b> 6:1 7:2
22:16 33:2
34:14 49:22,23
49:24 50:2
51:4 54:4
businesses 34:12 Bussi 17:8
Dussi 1/.0
С

## **cable** 3:13 calendars 27:18 call 7:20,21 35:9 37:13,21 39:3 40:1 48:20 51:15 Callaway 6:25 **called** 36:17 **caller** 39:8,12 callers 38:13 calls 28:20 37:12,20 44:1 **camera** 26:13 **cameras** 26:7,11 34:17 campaign 28:19 Candidate 7:21 capacity 17:24 32:11 49:3 captain 31:15

33:8,8 41:7 captured 26:8 car 17:21 32:1 card 14:11,13 51:17,21 Cards 14:11 care 17:3 52:10 **career** 14:22 15:3,8 carjackings 16:22 **carried** 5:14,24 Carter 2:4 4:7,7 5:8,18 19:12 19:14,18,22 20:2,4,6,9 case 46:2 49:5,6 49:11 cases 33:23 **Cass** 27:25 catch 39:22 caught 40:2 cause 40:10 55:16 **CCR** 25:13 **Center** 51:10 ceremony 18:1 **certain** 32:1,1 33:23 38:1,2 45:24 Certainly 20:10 **CERTIFICATE** 55:1 Certified 55:5 **certify** 55:7,15 Chair 3:9,25 4:15 6:3 14:1 18:16 19:8,12 21:21 29:19 40:14 43:20 44:23 45:7 46:15 48:5,19 51:21 54:5 Chairman 47:12 Chairperson 2:3 17:20 Chandler 20:14 21:6 change 37:9 changed 16:24 channel 3:13 **Chaplain** 4:19,19 4:22,24

51:21

<pre>charged 35:6,17 Charles 2:17 7:4 charter 12:6,8   12:13,16 31:4   31:10,11,12 chasing 17:15 check 9:5 23:3   46:13</pre>
checklist 30:13
chief 2:16,17
<pre>checks 27:6 chief 2:16,17 6:19 7:3,4,9 8:5 9:20 10:20 10:20 11:11 12:1,9 13:13 16:7,11 18:13 18:18 19:3,15 21:18 24:15 27:11,21 28:6 28:13 30:4,22 31:22 32:22,25 44:19 48:23 chief's 7:17 15:4 18:22,23</pre>
49:4 <b>Christmas</b> 10:24
Christopher
17:10,12
17:10,12 <b>church</b> 18:3 42:25, 43:3
42:25 43:3
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13 city 11:13,15
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13 city 11:13,15 12:6 13:7
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13 city 11:13,15 12:6 13:7 19:16 21:4,8 31:4,10,11,12
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13 city 11:13,15 12:6 13:7 19:16 21:4,8 31:4,10,11,12 35:22,25 36:9
42:25 43:3 circled 35:2 circulated 46:20 Citation 15:4 citations 15:4,7 cities 31:2 37:18 39:23 citizen 11:21 24:12,13 26:14 31:1 39:4 citizen's 24:21 citizens 15:10 15:15 23:5 27:13 city 11:13,15 12:6 13:7 19:16 21:4,8 31:4,10,11,12

city's 35:23 37:2 49:8,8 city-wide 18:19 civilian 11:8,18 12:16 22:25 23:11,14,18,20 23:22,24 24:8 29:9 civilians 11:17 clap 24:5 class 8:4 10:9
18:9,9 30:19
54:6 clean 28:24
cleanup 50:3,8
clearly 25:8
<b>clerk</b> 47:9
<b>close</b> 30:23
codes 48:7,8,11
Coleman 31:4
collected 40:1
combat 39:16
<pre>combine 24:9 come 4:21 8:10</pre>
9:13 20:15,16 21:6,14 28:15 44:9,25 47:5,6 48:17 50:15,17 50:18 53:4 comes 26:21
coming 9:12
10:12 20:19 22:4 39:13,23 50:13 54:6 command 13:14
24:16,23
commander 32:17
32:20,22,23
36:14 40:3,5,8 40:14,17,22 41:5,6,11,12
41:5,6,11,12
49:6
<b>commend</b> 39:22
43:22 53:1,12
comment 30:5
42:20 52:25
comments 14:13
30:12 39:20
42:5,6 <b>commission</b> 15:14
24:2 55:22
21.2 33.22

2: 3: 4: 5: 7: 8: 9: 10 14 15 16 18 19 20 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	5, 5, 13, 19, 18, 19, 18, 18, 19, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18	677,9,2,1,62,4	,78 ,78 1,1 1,1 1,1 1,1 1,1	, , , 3 8 1 , 741518	8295,7:971,8,2,	,3,:1:3: 512:1,2	9 1471,11 551612	41,,,8,0 : 2,3	: 716 4: 2	4 8 1 0
20 21 21	:2:1:2	3	, 2 , 2	1 2 2	,	2 2 1	1 1	: , 4	1	2 2 7
22 22 25	: 2	9	1 2 2 2	4	1 :	3 6 3	,	1	5	,
27 29	: 2	20	, 2	9	:	1	2	,	1	4
30	:3	, ! . 8	, - 5 , 3	8	, :	1 1	1 8	,	1	5
39 40 40	: 1 : 7	9	, 2 9 ,	1 2 5	6	4	01	: 8	4	
25 27 29 30 30 40 41 42 43 43 44 44 45	:1	3	, 1 6 ,	5	, 9	1 , 2	8 2	, 0	2	3
42 43 43	: 5	. 2 . , ( 20	, 2 6 , , 2	9	, ,	2 9 2	4 , 2	1	9	
44 44 45	:6 :1	. 4 . 1	8, 2, 4	1 3 6	1:	, 4 1	1 5 5	2	8	
47 47	: 1 : 2	4	1, 4	1 8	2:	, 1	2	1		
48 50	:1	.3	4 , 2	9 5	:	6	0	2	2 1	5
50 50 51 53	: 2	:3 :,:	25 25	4	5	2	5 :	2	1	
54 54	: 4	ŀ,.	10	,	1	1	'±	1	2	
OMI P	.ı ni	. U SS	;i	01	ne	91	r	3		
1:										

4:2,13 5:5

10:23 11:7

12:7 13:12

16:6 18:12 30:3 31:12 39:19 40:20 47:15 48:14 52:5 Commit 15:7
commitment 15:11
15:16
committee 14:3,6
41:24
communicating 31:22
communication
14:10 45:21
51:14
communications
36:17 37:9
48:25
communities
15:10
community 1:9
12:23 15:1
21:16 23:2,9
29:3 31:2,17
43:24 44:21,24
45:3 46:8,11
46:18,22 51:8
40.10,22 31.0
51:12 52:25
51:13 53:25
<b>compare</b> 34:19
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8</pre>
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8   36:2 competition 21:1</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8   36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8   36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1   49:16 complaints 11:10</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8   36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1   49:16 complaints 11:10</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8   36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1   49:16 complaints 11:10</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3    27:13,20</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3    27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19</pre>
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3    27:13,20 completed 50:16</pre>
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4
<pre>compare 34:19 comparison 29:8    36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1    49:16 complaints 11:10    23:22   24:12,13    24:19,21,23,25    26:6,11,18,21    26:24,25   27:3    27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15</pre>
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5 concern 10:16
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5 concern 10:16 49:20 51:16
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5 concern 10:16 49:20 51:16 concerned 21:18
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5 concern 10:16 49:20 51:16 concerned 21:18 concerns 18:13
compare 34:19 comparison 29:8 36:2 competition 21:1 complaint 31:1 49:16 complaints 11:10 23:22 24:12,13 24:19,21,23,25 26:6,11,18,21 26:24,25 27:3 27:13,20 completed 50:16 completion 53:19 complicated 12:4 compliment 41:15 computer 34:24 37:23 55:12 concept 12:5 concern 10:16 49:20 51:16 concerned 21:18

commissioner 2:4

conclude 49:18 54:18 condition 37:22 conditions 13:11 conducted 37:3 conducting 3:10 confuse 33:23 congratulate 15:18 congratulations 32:12 Congressional 9:25 10:4,5 Congresswoman 9:25 10:4 Conners 51:10 consideration 14:4 constantly 26:22 constituents 45:1 consummate 15:12 **contact** 30:23 contacts 16:23 24:16 contain 46:3 contemplate 33:14 continue 13:4 16:15,19 25:17 25:18,23 27:9 27:9,10,19 31:5,15 37:22 52:9 **control** 11:22 12:7,15 13:18 conversation 28:7 **convey** 30:19 cooperating 52:21 **corner** 50:11,15 Corp 4:19 correct 9:6 24:18 55:13 cost 20:17 council 53:25 Councilman 53:21 **counsel** 55:15 **counts** 39:1 **county** 21:7 55:3 55:6

couple 20:14 25:16,23 28:2 29:5 course 6:14 18:7 **court** 6:7 7:23 **covers** 31:13 covertly 36:8 **CPR** 39:12 Craig 7:10 18:18 19:3 44:19 create 23:8 27:11 **credit** 15:12 **crime** 12:19 16:13 33:9,9 34:1,15,19,24 35:10 36:15,16 37:1 crimes 14:24 34:7,20 39:16 criminal 16:16 16:22 critical 31:2 33:7 crucial 31:25 **CSR** 55:19 currently 24:7 25:9 customer 31:20 31:25

D

data 24:11 47:14

**date** 21:10 41:22

Cuts 38:24

**daily** 47:19

**Darryl** 3:25

**Dallas** 23:25

51:7

Davis 2:10 4:11
4:11,19,22,24
14:16,17 20:20
21:12 29:14
47:21,24 50:25
54:10

day 4:24 7:20
17:22 18:4,8
20:23 21:15
22:2 35:9

day-to-day 13:17
days 18:18 35:6
DC 7:5,8,11,19

7:22,25 8:12 16:12 18:21,25 19:5,17,19,24 20:3,5,7,10 21:19,25 22:3 22:6,8,11 **deal** 25:25 37:11 dealer 32:1 dealing 31:17 32:9 **December** 14:21 decrease 16:19 24:13 25:16 26:19 dedication 15:11 deficient 24:17 definition 34:17 36:6 **deliver** 13:16 delivering 12:24 delivery 13:21 Demeanor 25:16 democracy 11:19 department 8:22 10:19 11:9,11 12:8,10,12,18 12:22 13:8,14 13:17,19 14:21 15:6,10,12,15 15:17 25:19 27:10 49:8,8 department's 37:3 departments 23:7

23:19 Depending 13:6 depends 13:12 deposition 55:7 **deputy** 2:17 7:4 9:19 10:20 16:7,11 18:13 19:15 21:18 32:22 48:23 Dequindre 18:3 50:9,11 description 35:4 detailed 45:10 deterrence 34:13 **Detroit** 1:7,13 1:15 3:1 4:19 11:8,13 12:6 12:18,20 14:21

14:22 15:9,10 15:12,14,15,15 18:20 19:16 20:19 21:5,8,9 24:2,4 27:10 31:2,8 32:3 34:11 35:23 36:10,21 37:5 43:11 44:25 47:4,9 49:4 50:9 Detroit's 45:13 **Develop** 27:15 developed 37:24 37:25 Dewaelsche 2:5 4:4,4 5:7 29:19,21 54:11 dictionary 31:23 difference 31:7 different 22:21 35:3 38:6 52:15 **dignity** 52:9,13 diligently 15:9 directed 50:4 direction 16:16 16:20 directive 24:24 27:17 directly 45:17 director 6:10 discarding 36:16 discounting 10:8 discuss 14:8 discussion 5:11 5:21 16:2 54:14 dispatch 34:24 disproportionate 34:7 **Dist** 2:3,4,8,9 2:10 distinct 31:7 **district** 3:9 4:7 4:9,11 9:25 10:4,6 16:9 19:8,9 44:2 45:6,19 46:21 46:23,23,23 47:2,17 50:3,8 50:21



districts 43:25 45:3,5,19
47:16 Division 14:24 doctor 37:24 38:1 52:19 doing 6:6 17:14 21:3 23:4,5,6 23:8,10 27:7 27:14 38:16 50:3,25 53:3 dollars 11:14 13:8
<b>Donna</b> 6:6 55:5
55:19 double 18:25 DPD 6:10 7:10 12:2 17:22 18:4 21:16 31:12 34:14 Dr 6:14,17,19 8:7 12:1 22:16 22:18,20 23:17 24:7,11,21 25:7,13,21 26:5,17 27:5 28:5 29:1,13 29:15,25 30:7 30:10,14,17 dragging 52:18 drive 28:10 31:19,25
<pre>driver 36:19 Driving 15:5</pre>
<pre>drooping 52:18 drop 21:13 drug 41:20 DTE 53:8</pre>
due 25:21 38:17 duly 47:2,10 48:2 55:9,11 dumb 33:13,15 dumber 33:14 dumped 35:24 36:9
dumping 35:20,21 35:22 36:8,15 37:2,7 39:24 dutifully 14:24 duty 3:18 17:24

E
<b>E</b> 2:9
earlier 18:1
<b>early</b> 17:15
eastside 20:19
21:8 32:4 50:9
eastsiders 20:19
21:10
Ebenezer 18:3
educate 31:16
effective 23:1
effectively 13:8
effectiveness
13:3
effort 13:3
efforts 23:4 eight 23:24 27:2
<b>either</b> 23:7 55:16
elderly 53:8
elders 52:14
elected 9:21,21
24:3
electoral 31:9
electronic 26:5
elevator 53:10
<b>eleven</b> 19:4 21:3
24:2 26:20
Eleventh 50:21
eliminates 38:9
Elizabeth 2:7
4:8 13:25
14:19
<b>email</b> 46:19
<pre>emergency 37:12</pre>
37:14 38:11
39:1,4 52:19
emphasize 31:9
31:25
<b>EMS</b> 37:16 38:5,7
39:10 53:4
<b>en</b> 39:10
encourage 26:10
energy 48:10
enforcement 13:5
15:3,17
engagement 13:10
20:18
engaging 31:3
enjoyed 52:7
entertain 54:5

<pre>entitled 32:3 equipment 50:19</pre>
Eric 17:6,8
especially 21:16
30:22,23 31:17
39:23 42:4
50:7 52:14
essentially
45:12
Eva 2:5 4:4
evening 1:9 6:5
49:19
event 19:20,20
19:21 20:22
22:4 55:16
events 18:6
19:15
<b>everybody</b> 32:2 44:3 47:3 50:7
52:8
everybody's
21:12 43:16
everyone's 52:7
evidence 26:6
35:11
<b>exactly</b> 38:10,11
40:12
examining 13:3
<b>example</b> 34:4
39:2
excellent 29:25
29:25 30:11
39:24 41:7
Excuse 49:25
excused 4:1
Executive 2:13
<b>exemplary</b> 15:16 <b>exist</b> 11:7 24:4
exist 11:7 24:4
expensive 20:16
experiencing
39:5
expires 55:22
explain 28:11
explanation
33:12
express 10:16
<b>extend</b> 23:23
_
extraordinary
extraordinary 48:15 eyes 11:17

**F** 31:21 **face** 52:18,20 **Facebook** 19:25 facilitated 53:13 facility 17:3 21:7 fact 21:8 38:15 failure 35:6 Fair 3:19 **Faith** 51:22,23 52:1,3,4 53:17 **fallen** 10:17,22 familiar 31:13 families 10:17 20:15 21:17 **family** 3:24 20:16 43:17 fantastic 30:6 **far** 4:3 14:12 26:18 29:8,16 31:16 46:8,17 **fast** 8:13 **fatal** 34:22 **father** 44:20 **favor** 5:11,21 16:3 54:14 favorite 32:15 favoritism 46:16 **fed** 45:21 feedback 45:25 **feel** 29:4,10 32:2 **feet** 8:14 **fell** 17:16 **Felony** 14:24 **felt** 37:19 field 18:4 42:8 42:13 **Fifth** 20:11,12 21:2 32:17,18 51:9,11 53:2 53:12 **fighting** 12:19 **file** 23:21 filling 7:9 **filter** 38:2 **finally** 33:15 37:8,8 **find** 37:6 40:2 41:18 **fine** 36:11

**entire** 44:15,16

**first** 6:10,12 9:14 10:8,9 11:25 31:3,5 32:7 33:8 34:2 42:8 55:9 firsthand 30:21 fiscal 6:14 Fitzgerald 2:17 7:4,5,8,11,19 7:22,25 8:12 16:8,12 18:21 18:25 19:5,17 19:19,24 20:3 20:5,7,10 21:19,25 22:3 22:6,8,11 32:23 48:24 **five** 16:9 31:5 41:3 45:15 **flag** 18:7 **flow** 11:6 **flyer** 21:24 22:10 **focus** 26:9 folks 8:22 21:11 21:13 46:23 **follow** 19:1 following 15:4 **food** 20:22 **football** 18:8 **forcing** 13:19 foregoing 55:10 **forget** 20:20 **form** 23:22 **former** 32:16 **forth** 45:24,25 46:14 55:8 fortunate 32:6 **forum** 23:5 **forward** 4:21 9:5 26:10 42:16 49:9 foster 23:1 founding 11:19 **four** 3:9 12:21 13:3 27:1 38:16 **fourth** 11:3 14:23,25 **Friday** 50:18 **friendly** 31:20 friends 43:4

full 55:13 fun 18:8 fund 40:6,7,11 40:12 Funeral 15:6 further 35:5 55:14 future 44:16,22

G gals 8:21,24 games 20:22 gap 31:19 **Garza** 2:5 4:4 gas 34:8 41:20 gathering 20:17 gender 26:1 general 37:3 40:5,7,11,12 generally 49:11 gentlemen 33:9 36:24 getting 9:4 18:25 22:24 28:20 29:6 38:2,23 41:5 give 22:1 33:1 33:12,13 34:4

36:1 37:25 38:22 39:12 50:20 51:16,19 given 5:3 48:16 Givens 27:24 gives 12:6 25:10 37:24 giving 28:23 41:21 glad 4:25 52:6 Gnashing 19:17 go 5:1 6:12 11:5 14:18 16:13

32:1,8 33:2,10 35:20 38:19,20 40:4 41:20 42:10 43:1,2 44:25 45:5 46:12 goal 42:17

19:25 31:23

goal 42:17 goals 27:6 42:16 God 30:16 52:6 goes 27:25 40:5

40:8 45:17 52:8 going 4:2,18 8:25 16:12 17:17 18:18 19:21 20:13,21 20:23 21:15 22:23 25:16 26:1 28:22 30:23 33:24 40:13 42:11,12 42:17 43:12,16 44:8 47:8 48:3 50:3 51:8,12 51:15,17,24 52:15

good 3:5,6,7 4:22,23 6:17 6:18 7:6,14 8:15,22 22:18 22:19 25:16 26:3 28:23 29:10 32:20,21 32:22 37:17 43:2 47:21 48:16 54:9 gosh 42:24

government 3:13 11:20 23:23 Grace 18:11 grad 33:19 graduate 28:15

graduating 14:22 18:9 30:19 graduation 49:1 graph 25:7,11 great 8:25 20:18

20:18,21 21:4 21:6,15 39:22 42:12 48:10 greater 18:11

28:14 **Green** 34:2,3,11

34:21 35:4,8 35:11,15,18 39:24 41:16,19 41:21

GREGORY 2:12 grievance 52:12 ground 41:8 group 7:12,13 8:1,20 46:4 GSI 47:13 guess 47:13,20 guest 52:6 Guidance 51:10 guides 37:21 guilty 37:6 gunshot 17:6,7 guy 33:18 guys 8:21,24 28:8

Н hand 17:11 handle 38:8 happening 19:16 31:16 happy 41:10 hard 13:13 37:17 harmonious 23:2 head 17:10 19:1 headquarters 1:13 10:25 hear 15:23 31:21 42:1 46:23 52:1,7 heard 18:18,20 19:2 52:7 hearing 16:7 22:16 40:10 47:20 52:7 **Hearn** 3:17,18 10:18 17:20 hearts 5:1 heavy 50:19 **Hello** 53:24 help 38:4 39:8 42:13 53:7,14 53:20 helpful 33:24 42:10 helping 42:10 53:3 helps 38:4 hereinbefore 55:8 hey 44:2,20 Hicks 2:12 4:14 4:15 6:1,3 43:23 44:10

45:7,8,9,12

48:3,5,18,19

high 21:1 25:18

34:13,17 36:6 highest 15:17 32:7 highlight 20:11 21:1 highlighting 43:13 **highly** 15:12 **hired** 47:13 historic 47:4 **history** 41:13 hit-and-run 34:22,22,25 35:2 hoc 41:24 **hold** 33:19 51:17 **holiday** 10:24 **Holley** 2:6 4:6,6 5:17 41:13 43:5 51:25 52:2 home 17:5,6,7,9 17:10,12,19 43:3 homicide 35:10 35:17 homicides 16:16 honor 13:23 **HONORING** 14:19 hope 13:21 25:18 30:19 51:17 54:7 hopefully 12:21 20:23 28:15 44:16 horrific 50:10 50:14 hospital 52:16 house 14:17 household 45:13 45:14,15,16,17 46:1,4 47:8 hovers 16:25 Hunter 6:24

identified 25:2 25:9 34:6 35:3 35:23 37:4 identify 13:2 25:4,10 35:12 35:16 36:9

38:21 **illegal** 35:21,22 36:7,14 37:7 illegally 35:24 36:10 **image** 52:10,11 immediately 6:11 **impact** 32:10 34:16,18 36:10 implemented 37:20 importance 12:16 important 11:18 11:22 13:22 29:2,23 impounded 36:21 37:6 impressed 41:2 43:25 impromptu 9:2 improve 11:14 27:22,22 34:12 45:23 Improvement 12:10 in-car 26:7 inaudible 44:7 incident 13:20 include 23:14 26:2 included 29:4 including 10:17 46:25 52:5 inconclusive 26:9 increase 34:13 increases 25:23 44:17 Indianapolis 24:1 indicate 6:4 indicated 38:16 Indicating 38:14 individual 13:20 38:23 48:9 individuals 31:5 36:12 45:15,20 46:3

infer 23:11

information

10:22 23:6

24:16 37:15

40:15 45:24 48:22 initiate 14:6 initiative 27:12 27:15 28:22 injured 10:17,19 10:22 17:2 **injury** 35:7 **insight** 30:21 inspection 43:12 **inspire** 27:22,23 installed 31:4 36:6 instructed 14:5 instructions 38:22 39:7,8 integrity 15:11 intel 34:24 35:10 **Intent** 15:7 interact 9:18 interaction 30:25 41:10 interest 13:15 14:5 49:9 interested 28:12 55:16 interim 6:10 **intern** 27:23 interpret 29:22 interpreted 29:24 interpreting 29:2 introduce 4:2 6:2,15 7:10,15 7:23 introducing 6:4 invaluable 15:17 investigate 11:9 investigation 35:5 37:4 investigative 8:23 23:14 investigator 6:20,21,21,22 6:22,23,23,24 6:24,24,25,25 8:5 12:1 27:14 28:2,17 30:4,6 30:8,22 31:22 Investigator's

27:21 investigators 25:2 investment 13:5 **invite** 50:6,8 invited 4:18 21:10,12 inviting 48:25 invocation 4:18 4:20 5:3 involved 3:18 17:13,23 18:18 26:6,7 27:17 49:6 **issue** 25:25 26:1 35:19,19,20 37:11 **issued** 36:11,20 36:22 37:5 **issues** 13:22 31:17 34:1 39:17 40:23 47:10 item 5:15 6:1 7:2 14:14 16:7 22:15 32:14 41:24 48:17 49:2,10 51:14 **items** 13:22 48:21,21,22

### J **James** 3:17 6:25 9:24 10:3,18 17:5,20 Janee' 53:25 **Jerome** 53:24 **Jim** 2:6 4:6 **job** 8:25 28:15 28:21 29:25,25 30:6,11 42:14 Johnson 6:13 17:3 join 3:16,21 **joining** 3:12 **July** 1:11 3:2 5:15 34:23 35:6 36:10 **June** 24:14 25:23 36:15 Justice 15:6 **Justin** 17:9

	15.5	05.10 24.4	1 10.1 07.7
K	League 15:5	25:18 34:4	making 12:1 27:7
<b>Karey</b> 33:8,8	learn 38:18	live 32:4	41:2
keep 3:23 5:2	leave 42:25	Livestream 34:14	man 17:15 41:14
24:18 28:24	leaves 23:20	local 23:23	53:20
41:22 49:11,18	led 23:24 24:2	34:12	manager 2:13
<b>Keys</b> 18:19 19:7	left 4:3 6:9	locally 11:23	6:14
<b>kind</b> 24:5,16	34:25 35:13	located 14:11	mandate 12:15
25:11 28:11,14	51:23 52:23	18:6	31:11
29:16	legs 17:16	location 35:4,11	manner 33:5
Kisselburg 17:5	Lemuel 17:15	36:18 38:8	manners 31:24
knees 17:17	let's 11:2 35:20	51:12	map 44:3
<b>know</b> 9:10 18:21	36:23	long 17:13 47:5	Mark 32:23
18:24 20:16	letter 45:3	47:7 48:17	Marroquin 17:9
21:3,14 25:18	letters 15:8	long-term 17:3	matched 35:4
27:3,6 31:14	47:22	look 13:19 20:24	materials 35:25
32:1,8 33:21	liaison 53:25	29:6 37:9,17	matter 7:25
34:3 35:21	license 35:12,13	looking 7:12 9:5	38:15
38:5,10 39:25	lieutenant 8:9	33:25 42:15	Mayham 10:11,11
40:9,12,13,23	8:16 31:14,14	47:14	10:14
41:19 42:20	32:7	looks 12:22	mayor 11:11
43:6,12,16,25	lieutenants 18:1	17:16	12:13 31:4
44:17,18 45:4	26:18 32:8	Lord 4:25 5:1	McCalister 6:15
46:8,10,12,22	42:21,23 43:15	loss 3:20	6:17,19,19 8:7
47:3,14,15,16	life 3:16,20	lost 17:20	12:1 22:16,18
47:21 49:10	11:14 34:1	lot 9:3 24:7,9	22:20 23:17
50:19	35:19,20 37:11	24:14 26:11,21	24:7,11,21
<b>Kovak</b> 17:22	39:6,16	36:7 41:13,17	25:7,13,21
	life-threatening	47:24 50:25	26:5,17 27:5
L	39:5	52:15	28:5 29:1,13
<b>L-Pack</b> 7:13,22	lifelong 15:16	louder 10:2	29:15,25 30:6
7:23 8:1	light 34:3,3,11 34:21 35:4,8	love 28:8 loved 43:17	30:7,10,14,17
<b>lack</b> 23:12			mean 9:10 23:12 40:12 44:2
Ladies 33:9	35:11,15,18 39:24 41:19	<b>Luther</b> 18:19 19:7	47:20 48:10
36:24	53:11	19.7	means 13:18
<b>lady</b> 44:2	lights 41:17,22		measures 23:8
Lamar 6:9	53:4	ma'am 4:21 18:15	media 6:5 47:20
language 27:8	line 32:7	19:13 21:22	mediation 27:12
31:21	liquor 34:8	40:17 50:1,5	mediators 23:10
<b>laptop</b> 51:23	Lisa 2:4 4:7	52:2	mediators 23:10 medical 37:12,14
<b>large</b> 37:18	list 14:3 41:16	Mack 51:11	38:11
largest 23:19	41:21 45:13,13	Madrigal 6:21	meet 10:23,25
46:2	45:17 46:1,13	mail 44:15 45:16	11:2,2,4
<b>Las</b> 24:1	46:14	46:5 48:15	meeting 1:9 3:10
Lashinda 28:6	listed 48:21	mailed 48:8	3:12,14 4:1
<b>late</b> 34:6	49:2	mailer 47:16	5:6 6:5,20
launched 34:10	listen 30:14	mailing 45:18,20	9:14 10:10
law 13:5 15:3,17	listening 19:9	47:5,6	14:6,8,9 42:7
49:8,8	50:7	mailings 48:7,12	42:9,16 51:5,8
Lawrence 9:25	listing 10:19	major 15:5 50:8	51:13
10:4	littering 36:20	majority 23:25	meetings 11:3
Leach 49:6	little 10:1	48:13	24:15
<b>lead</b> 32:11			
	•	•	•

meets 15:17 **member** 45:19 53:25 member's 24:22 members 24:3 37:2 Memorial 35:9 mention 21:9 43:14 mentioned 11:5 17:25 21:4 met 44:19 Metropolitan 14:22 Miami 24:1 Miami-Dade 23:25 mic 8:10 51:25 Michigan 1:15 3:1 33:19 55:2 Mika 27:24 Mile 18:10 34:23 **million** 23:21 46:19 mind 12:20 40:23 mine 48:1 **minute** 39:1 52:23 minutes 5:15 17:1 34:25 51:15,17 missed 45:6mix 8:22 model 24:4 **modify** 11:12 moment 3:21,22 **Monday** 28:9 money 39:25 40:4 monitor 11:10 27:19 monitoring 34:23 month 11:1,1,3,3 11:4 22:20,22 22:23 23:13 24:12,22 26:2 26:9 27:14 51:13 monthly 27:18 44:9 moral 32:10 morning 16:18 17:20 53:4,11 Moses 6:21 27:14

28:2 mother 39:4,8 motion 5:13,24 54:5 motorcycle 17:13 move 10:15 32:14 48:3,17 49:22 54:10 moved 5:7,9,17 5:19 15:21,22 15:25 54:12 moving 22:15 26:10 36:24,25 41:23 42:7 49:9 Murder 15:7 **Murphy** 6:22 28:16

# Ν

**name** 7:2 10:10 14:10 51:16 52:4 53:23 named 27:24 national 20:2 37:19 nationally 11:22 nature 47:5 **Neal** 33:17,18 **Nealy** 6:23 **near** 34:8 necessarily 48:23 49:15 need 21:5 23:9 26:23,23 31:10 31:10,15 33:22 38:11,25 40:12 49:9 50:13 53:4 **needed** 53:14 needing 39:4 **needs** 13:9 14:13 neighborhood 18:17 22:2 34:12 44:4

53:7 neighboring 15:10

neighbors 46:24 47:18,24

nepotism 46:17 **Nevada** 19:6,10

**never** 38:7 **new** 14:3,6 27:21 49:24 50:2 51:4 **Newark** 24:1 **newly** 30:24 43:13,16 **news** 45:3 47:22 47:22 newsletter 43:24 44:24 45:5 46:18,20,22,24 46:25 newsletters 44:13 **NFL** 15:6 **nice** 20:23 **night** 20:2 52:25 **nine** 21:3 26:8 26:25 nineteen 26:25 nominees 23:25 non-mayoral 23:25 noncriminal 11:10 nonfatal 16:19 normal 24:11

Northeast 51:9 **Notary** 55:1,6 **noted** 23:1 47:2 47:11 48:2 notes 55:14 notice 23:3 25:15 notified 36:17 **number** 12:22 13:1,3 19:4

44:18 46:2 50:20 numbers 16:15

21:3 34:7

25:19 numerous 15:8

0

objective 11:12 obligation 13:16 obscured 35:14 observant 41:9 observed 3:22 34:24 36:15

37:2 obstacle 18:7 obtained 14:12 obvious 34:2 occurred 34:7,25 **OCI** 6:16 9:18 22:16 25:2 42:9 ocs 7:21 October 15:7 offensive 25:25 office 2:16 11:25 18:22,23 27:21 30:22 32:23 48:7 49:4 **officer** 3:17,18 5:1 10:18 13:24 14:15,19 14:22,24 15:1 15:3,9,16,18 17:2,4,6,9,10 17:12,14,20,22 28:3,13 officer's 3:24 7:21 officers 10:17 10:19,22 13:14 17:2 25:5,22 26:10,19,23,24 27:1,2 28:23 36:17 42:15 43:18 53:1,6 official 9:22 49:3 officials 9:21 offline 48:4 **Oh** 19:19 22:11 30:14 42:24 Okay 8:8,20 11:2 19:5,22 21:20 22:15,20 41:23 48:2 50:18,19 52:3 **old** 11:18 49:22 49:22 omissions 46:6 once 21:10 47:18 54:5 ones 25:8

ongoing 38:15

**open** 28:7



operating 41:4 operation 12:10 13:17 operations 11:10 32:24 operator 39:3,6 39:11 operator's 39:7 operators 37:10 37:13 opportunity 8:4 8:5 9:18 30:20 32:10 51:19 opposed 5:13,24 16:5 opt 23:13 oral 14:9 51:14 **order** 38:2 39:15 48:11 organization 12:19 18:19 organizing 42:13 original 46:13 Originally 32:25 **outlet** 31:18 outreach 23:4 Outstanding 40:21 51:2 **outward** 12:22 **overall** 28:23 overcompensating 52:21 oversight 11:8 11:18 12:7,15 13:18 22:25 23:11,23 24:8 oversights 23:18 23:20 29:9 overview 34:4

#### Ρ

p.m1:11 3:3 5:3 7:17 11:4 18:5 34:8 51:6,9 54:18 package 29:5 49:10,17 packed 20:24 packet 14:2 page 29:22 49:12 49:14 paid 9:5 Palmer 32:4 panel 31:5 paper 29:6 44:21 parading 44:20 paramilitary 12:18 park 20:13,14,16 20:17 21:6,6 32:4 **Parks** 15:5 part 14:1 20:12 21:8 31:21 52:24 participate 20:25 participation 53:20 54:8 particular 4:3 45:18 51:20 parties 21:18 partnership 34:12 party 13:15 55:16 Pass 22:12 **passed** 23:7 passenger 36:21 **path** 31:6 patience 52:14 patrol 8:23 15:1 36:17,18 **Paula** 22:16 **people** 3:12,20 12:24 13:1,9 21:17 24:3 31:18 33:7,22 36:9 39:23 40:12 41:10,17 45:21 46:8,11 53:8,9,15 **people's** 52:11 **perfect** 15:4,5 22:8 39:2 **period** 10:24 16:17 **person** 33:17 38:15,24 39:12 39:14 45:16 **person's** 52:13 personal 33:1 35:7 Personnel 6:10

perspective 11:16 **phone** 28:20 Phonetic 10:11 33:17 53:24 **picture** 35:13,14 **pistol** 17:16 **place** 43:7 55:8 plaintiff's 49:15 **plan** 9:11 12:10 13:20 **plate** 35:12,13 **play** 13:15 **please** 3:20,23 4:21 7:10,24 8:10 9:22 10:10,10 14:8 14:10 28:18 33:19 43:1 50:20 51:16 **pleased** 48:14 **pled** 37:6 **point** 19:15 31:23 points 29:23 **police** 1:7 2:16 3:8,17 4:19 10:23,25 11:7 11:9,11,12 12:3,6,8,18,24 13:12,16,24 14:15,21,22 15:10,12,14,15 15:20 23:2,7,9 23:14,19 24:2 27:10 28:3,12 31:12 32:15,25 34:13 41:18 42:15 policemen 20:25 policing 11:17 12:17 13:10 **policy** 11:12

**Polly** 6:14,19

portion 29:24

positions 32:6

positive 27:15

12:1

**pool** 22:21

post 48:6

**power** 11:20

53:12 practical 47:8 practice 37:13 **prayers** 3:24 5:2 precinct 14:23 14:25,25 15:7 20:12,12 21:2 27:17 32:17,18 41:8,8,9 50:21 51:9,12 53:2,2 53:13 precincts 19:21 20:7 28:20 35:22 **premed** 28:1 prepared 33:3 presence 34:13 present 6:16 12:9 14:18 24:12 32:24 presentation 12:3,21 13:21 27:14 33:1 38:20 51:24 presentations 11:24 **pretty** 31:22 Prevention 14:24 preventive 23:8 previous 37:13 principle 11:18 principles 11:19 11:22 print 14:10 **prior** 6:4 47:6 priorities 13:9 privilege 51:18 proactive 13:10 23:4 **probably** 9:13,17 49:4 problem 34:6 38:3,9 procedure 25:14 25:15 **proceed** 52:24 proceeding 54:18 process 23:15 29:4 31:1,1,9 51:18 profanity 25:22 27:19



professional
15:12
professionalism
13:13 15:11
program 37:23
programs 12:25
13:4
progress 27:7
41:2
<b>Project</b> 34:2,3
34:11,21 35:8
35:15,18
promoted 8:16
30:24 43:13,16
<pre>promotion 30:19</pre>
promotional 18:1
<pre>promptly 25:2</pre>
<b>proof</b> 26:14
<b>properly</b> 5:9,19
15:22,25 46:14
<b>ProQA</b> 37:20,23
38:15 39:6
<pre>prosecute 36:9</pre>
protest 7:12
<b>protocol</b> 37:19
38:1 39:6
protocols 38:17
<b>proud</b> 8:24
<b>proven</b> 27:12
<pre>provide 4:19</pre>
10:21 11:8,13
12:15,19 23:5
<pre>provided 39:6</pre>
providing 13:18
proving 26:13
<b>PSA</b> 50:23
public 1:13 13:7
14:13 15:11,16
35:24 40:11
51:1,6,15
53:19 55:6
pull 48:6 51:25
put 30:13 43:24
putting 33:7
34:17 42:17
0
×

Q
quality 11:14
34:1,14 35:19
35:20 37:11
39:16
quarterly 44:11

question 39:25
questions 12:21
13:6,19 18:12
29:11,18,20
30:3 33:3,11
37:15,21 38:1
38:9,13 39:18
39:19 49:20
55:11
<b>Quick</b> 6:23 28:17
<b>quickly</b> 16:13
35:3
Quinn 6:5
<b>quorum</b> 4:14,15

## R **R** 55:5,19 **race** 25:25 ran 41:9 **random** 37:14 randomly 38:12 rank 8:9 26:18 32:7 41:11 43:13 ranking 8:9 rational 13:21 **reach** 46:7 47:7 47:8 48:16 **reached** 47:17 reaching 45:1 read 14:18 29:16 31:10 49:17 reading 11:6 real 13:10 **really** 21:17 23:1 25:11 26:10,13 28:14 28:16,21 29:10 31:10 41:7 42:12,12 43:1 43:1,7,8 realtime 33:9,9 34:15 36:15,16 37:1 reasonable 13:20

reassigned 14:24

receipt 48:6,8 receive 11:9 45:20 47:3 received 15:4 17:9,11 25:3

15:1

44:1,13 45:3,4
45:22 46:21,24 47:18,19,23,25
48:6 49:5
receives 10:18
39:3 receiving 46:8
46:11
recognition 15:5 15:6,6,16
recognizing
12:16 recommendation
12:23
record 28:24
52:4 53:24,24
54:3
recorded 55:12
records 46:2
recover 39:14
recovering 17:3
17:5
recruit 42:10,14
42:15
recruiters 42:14
42:25 43:2
recruiting 15:2 42:3,5,8,8,21
43:1,14
recuperating 17:6,7,8,10,12
17:14
red 35:2
Redford 36:19
reduced 55:12
reducing 46:1
reduction 34:19
reflect 44:16
reflection 8:21
reflects 13:9
regard 15:18
regarding 18:17
24:12,22,25
regards 8:16
regular 10:25
11:25
rejoice4:25
<b>relate</b> 25:24
<b>related</b> 10:22
55:15
relations 15:1

relationship

23:2
relationships 27:9
relatives 43:4
remain 26:18
remained 15:2
remarks 8:11 9:2
10:20,21 14:14
42:2
remedial 23:7
remembering 3:16
remind 49:13
<b>remove</b> 35:24
repeating 24:18 report 10:18
<b>report</b> 10:18
11:25 12:2,2,9 16:23 22:17
16:23 22:17
29:24 48:20
49:19 52:7
reported 48:24
reporter 6:7
55:5
reporting 16:24 40:21
reports 41:24
represent 3:9
representatives
representatives 9:22
9:22 representing
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22 resolution 13:23
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22 resolution 13:23 14:15,19
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22 resolution 13:23 14:15,19 RESOLVED 15:13
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22 resolution 13:23 14:15,19 RESOLVED 15:13 resources 38:6,8
9:22 representing 2:16 9:24 10:3 represents 49:9 49:14 request 5:5 requirements 12:14 requires 12:8,11 research 24:8 27:12 researched 25:4 resident 45:19 47:2 residents 12:20 23:21 44:12,25 45:2,4 46:21 46:24 47:22 resolution 13:23 14:15,19 RESOLVED 15:13

respond 31:19 responded 34:22 35:9 36:18 response 16:25 17:1 33:4 38:5 responsibility 14:1 rest 15:15 resting 17:19 restored 53:12 restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
response 16:25 17:1 33:4 38:5 responsibility 14:1 rest 15:15 resting 17:19 restored 53:12 restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
responsibility 14:1 rest 15:15 resting 17:19 restored 53:12 restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
rest 15:15 resting 17:19 restored 53:12 restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
restored 53:12 restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
restricted 17:24 43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
43:11 resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
resulted 3:20 Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
Retired 14:15,19 retirement 13:24 15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
15:2 returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
returned 17:23 review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
review 12:12 23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
23:18,20,24 24:8 29:7,7,9
24:8 29:7,7,9
31:7
reviewed 14:2
rig 37:16 right 9:5,18
11:21 14:12
16:15,20,25
17:11 22:24
25:15 29:6
32:9,14,19
35:1,14 40:2 43:17,18 51:6
51:7,7,19
right-hand 6:12
<b>rigs</b> 38:5,7
Rise 18:19
Road 34:23 Robert 2:13 6:11
17:22
role 13:15 28:11
root 38:3
Rosa 15:5 30:9
Rosie 28:19 29:1 29:22 30:8,9
29:22 30:8,9 30:10,11
route 39:11
routine 36:18
row 6:10,12
rule 46:6
run 17:4 18:7

<b>s</b> -:			7	:	1	3	,	2	2		
sa:	:1	7.	2	2							
Sa	u⊥ fo:	./• ⊢32	1	۷.	1	2					
<b>sa</b> :	۲e	<b>∟y</b> 16			1		1	2			
	1:	5		J	_	•	_	ی			
sa			1	5		1	Ω				
sa							O				
Sa	L ∠ ⊢11:	rd.	⊥ •יב	,	1	a	:	4			
2	2:	5	ص. ح	<b>x</b> .∩	:	4	٠	1	6		
		18		U	·	_	′	_	Ü		
Sa				1	3						
sa <sup>-</sup>						7					
sa					Ī	,					
sa					R						
SC						2		3	5	:	7
		19			_	_		_	_		•
sc				e	1	9	:	2.	0		
		25		_	_	_		_	Ĭ		
sc]				e	£	5	1	:	5		
Sc	ho	01	_ 7	:	2	1			_		
sc.	ho	01	s	4	0	:	1	1			
SC	00	te	r	s	5	3	:	9			
SC:	re	en	3	5	:	1					
sc:	re	<b>w</b> 7	:	1	6						
se	CO	nd	1	1	:	4		1	2	:	2
1	5:	23		1	8	:	3				
3	3:	23 17		4	7	:	5				
4	9:	2									
se	cr	et	a:	r	Y	2	:	1	2		
4	9:	21									
Se	ct.	io	n	1	2	:	8	,	9		
1	2:	11	,	1	1						
se	<b>e</b> 3	:7		7	:	2	,	6			
8	:1	3	1	4	:	3					
2	4:	25	,	2	5	:	8	,	1	1	
2	9:	16		3	4	:	9				
3	5:	1,	1	2	,	1	4				
3	6:	23		3	8	:	2	0			
4	1:	10 19		4	4	:	2	0			
4	6:	19		5	3	:	2	0			
	4:		_		_						
se											
se						-	_				
se.								7			
se.									_		
se.	LI 1	<b>- 1</b> : .7	u,	[ت	1	)(	וג	u	. ت	•	• •
se:							っ	ρ		7	
		10									Λ
ತ se:							ر	U	•	4	U
se								っ つ	1		
ಎ೮.	TT.	OT.	O	•	4	1	,	4	1		

6:22 8:9 27:13
seniority 26:17
seniors 47:19
sensitive 39:6
sent 24:24 27:16
Separation 11:20
sergeant 6:4
8:15,20 9:3,7
9:9,16 17:8
31:14 43:14
sergeants 18:2
26:19 30:24
32:8 42:21,23
serious 35:7
serve 3:9
<b>served</b> 14:24
15:9
<b>serves</b> 27:12
<b>service</b> 12:19,24
13:1,16,21,24
15:11,17 25:17
31:25 32:2,3
51:1
Services 6:5
<b>session</b> 10:25
<b>set</b> 9:3 55:8
seven 4:12 18:10
19:15 24:3
34:23
sexual 16:22
<b>shake</b> 18:25
<b>share</b> 8:10,11,18
10:6 42:4
<pre>sharing 9:1 Sharon 13:25</pre>
<b>Snaron</b> 13:25
14:15,19,21 15:16,18
she'll 33:12
sheets 29:5
Shirley 2:8 4:9
50:22
shooting 35:9
shootings 16:19
shop 41:19
Shorthand 55:5
show 19:9 46:16
showed 44:3
<b>side</b> 6:9,12
17:25 32:5
52:17,20,21,22
<b>sides</b> 49:15
significant

		:1									
s	ig	ni	ng	1	5	:	2	1			
	il									2	
	im										
_		:2				_					
	im			) 2		1	1				
									7		
_	48	:6	, ı	.9	_	4	9	•	/		
S	im	s ⊥	'/:	Τ	5						
s	in	gl	<b>e</b> 3	3	:	6					
s	ir 9: 18	7:	5,	1	1		9	:	7		
	9:	23	1	. 6	:	1	0	,	1	2	
	18	:1	7	1	9	:	1	1			
	2.1	: 2	4	3	9	:	2.	1			
	41	:1	2	4	5	:	1	1			
	10	:2	_	_	٦	٠	_	_			
_				_		٥		1	1		2
	it										3
	it			O1	n	3	4	6	:	5	
	ix										
S	la										
	9:	24	1	. 0	:	3	,	3			
s	li	gh	<b>t</b> 1	6	:	2	1	,	2	2	
	10										
_	33			_	_		_	_		Ŭ	
	<b>1u</b> :				2	5					
	mi						_				
	OC.										
	OC.										
S	ol	ut.	io	n	3	4	:	1	0		
s	omo	eb	od	У	1	8	:	2	3		
	50	:1	9								
s	omo			t	4	3	:	1	3		
	or:										
~	or	- <u>-</u> ⊢ 4	2:	_ ع	_						
_	ou	c ⊥ ⊢h	丘 1	•	1	1		1	1		
2	pai	C11	⊥ <b>רו</b> ה	· `	<b>ユ</b>	•	1	_	_		
D	Pa.	111	SII	_	2	•	Τ	0		_	
	24	:1	υ,	4	U		۷	5	•	6	
	25	:1	2,	2	U		2	6	:	4	
		:1		2	7	:	4				
	29	:2	4								
S	pa:	rt	an	3	3	:	2	0			
s	pe	ak	8:	4	,	5					
		:1					1	8		2	0
		: 2									
		:9		_	_		_	_			
_				1	1		1	1			
5	pe	a.K.	er.	,⊥	4	•	<u>.</u>	7	1		
		: 5									
S	pe	ak.	ın	g	Τ	5	:	Τ	5		
	52	:1	1,	1	2						
			a 1	1	4	:	2	4			
s	52 <b>pe</b>	Ci	ат								
	32	:2	, 3	3							
	32	:2	, 3	3							
	32 <b>pe</b>	:2	,3 £i	C	1						

specifically 34:15
speech 32:13
spend 28:8
sponsors 20:18
<pre>spot 50:11 stabbing 35:9</pre>
stabbling 35.9 stabilize 38:23
stabilized 39:8
<b>staff</b> 6:2,4,16
7:10,18 13:14
14:6 41:16,21 54:9
Stair 28:6
<b>stand</b> 7:23 10:10
28:17 54:16
standing 29:2 41:24 53:2,13
Stanton 6:24
start 7:11,14 23:13 26:1
23:13 26:1
33:6 48:16 50:16
started 11:6
24:22 25:21
28:18 34:9
41:5 <b>starting</b> 4:3
27:25
starts 20:8
<b>state</b> 3:19 18:5 50:12 55:2,6
stated 17:19
48:15
station 41:20
stations 34:8 stats 16:13
stay 13:16
<b>Stender</b> 50:8,9
50:11
<pre>stenographic 55:14</pre>
stenographically
55:12
step 48:15 stitches 17:11
stitches 17:11 stop 35:6
store 41:20
stores 34:8
<b>stories</b> 35:17 <b>story</b> 34:21 35:8
36:14 37:1

39:3
strategies 42:16
<b>street</b> 1:14 48:9
51:7
strength 13:2
<b>stroke</b> 52:17,20
structure 14:7
students 50:12
studies 28:1
study 22:25
stuff 16:14
subcommittee
14:2
<pre>subject 37:2,4 submitted 12:13</pre>
success 34:21
35:8,17 36:14
37:1 39:2
<b>suffered</b> 17:5,7
suggestion 45:23
suit 21:14
summarize 49:13
<b>summary</b> 49:12,14
49:16
summation 49:14
<b>summons</b> 49:5,7,7
<b>Super</b> 15:6
supervisors 32:7
supervisory 12:7
12:15 13:18
<b>support</b> 5:8,18
10:16 15:24
28:14 32:23 54:11
supported 5:10
5:20 16:1
54:13
supposed 19:3
27:18 44:25
sure 14:10 17:18
30:25 31:22
27:18 44:25 <b>sure</b> 14:10 17:18 30:25 31:22 39:13 46:13
surely 4:24
<b>Susan</b> 10:11
<b>suspect</b> 35:5,12
35:15,16
swimming 21:14
<b>sworn</b> 55:9
symptoms 39:5
52:18
<b>system</b> 16:24

T
<b>table</b> 14:11
tag 7:2
take 14:4 45:12
48:10 52:10
taken 48:14 55:7
55:14
<b>takers</b> 37:21
<b>takes</b> 24:16
<b>talent</b> 14:5
talk 22:20,23
25:24 27:5
33:20 43:1
33.20 43.1
47:18 48:3
talked 22:21,22
38:15 45:2
47:21
talking 26:22
28:22 46:17
talks 29:6
taping 6:5
task 52:13
tax 11:14 13:7
<b>Tech</b> 27:25
Technologies
12:3 32:15,25
technology 12:25
13.4 22.10 21
22.25 24.10 17
35.25 34.10,17
33:25 34:10,17 35:18 36:5,23 39:15 40:23,23
39:15 40:23,23
tell 42:11 43:3
<b>tells</b> 24:17
<b>Temple</b> 18:11
<b>ten</b> 26:25
terms 16:17
21:16 30:21
41:3,9 42:2
45:23 47:7
terrible 50:14
testify 55:9
thank 3:11,13,23
4:13,17,21 5:4
5:25 6:3 7:1,8
8:3 9:1 12 12
8:3 9:1,12,12 9:18,19,19
10.10 16.5 10
10:12 16:5,10
18:16 19:11 20:9 22:13,17
20:9 22:13,17
28:16,21 29:1 30:1,7,12,17 30:18 40:18 21
30:1,7,12,17
20.10 /0.10 21

41:11,12,17 42:17 43:8,19 43:19 48:19 50:22 51:2,3 52:6 53:15,17 53:17,18 54:1 54:3,6,8,16 thanks 9:3 30:12 41:20 Thanksgiving
10:24
thing 23:10 27:21 43:2
52:8
things 21:4
42:12 52:15,24
think 7:3 8:14 8:20,25 12:13
15:23 24:14
25:23 26:21
27:16 28:18
29:22 39:22
40:2,11 42:3
43:23 47:15
48:13 <b>third</b> 1:14 11:1
19:8,9 50:3,21
51:7
Thirteenth 14:25
<b>thirty</b> 27:2
Thirty-one 26:7
thought 17:16
thousand 20:15
thought 17:16 thousand 20:15 three 4:10 10:25 11:3 13:1 26:8
33:25 39:15
three-on-three
18:7
Thursday 1:11
11:1,2,4 51:5 Thurston 17:12
Tia 4:19
ticket 36:22
tie 43:15
till 36:10
<b>Tillman</b> 13:25
14:16,19,21,22
14:24 15:1,4,9
15:16,18 time 4:3 9:13 14
time 4:3 9:13,14 10:8,9 16:20
16:25 17:1

23:14

19:7 20:6 28:8 28:16 35:10 38:25 39:6 41:25 44:15 51:20 52:8,19 53:14 54:9 55:8 timely 33:5 times 33:10 41:17 timing 39:13 today 3:10 6:7 6:20 11:24 27:24 32:24 33:1,24 today's 4:1 6:20 13:23 **Tomby** 33:17,18 tomorrow 7:13 8:16 9:6 18:2 32:12 54:6,7 tonnage 36:4 tons 35:24 36:1 tools 13:4 top 23:19 45:16 topic 33:2 49:18 **Toronto** 22:25 Township 36:19 tracking 24:23 26:1 **tragic** 17:21 **trailer** 36:16 trained 38:14 training 24:14 26:22 38:14 transcript 55:14 transcription 55:13 Translated 23:16 24:10,20 25:6 25:12,20 26:4 26:16 27:4 transparency 11:21 **trauma** 17:9 **treated** 52:9,14 treatment 32:3 **trend** 16:15,19 **tried** 14:3 **troops** 32:9 **true** 9:15 55:13 **trust** 23:12

**truth** 55:10,10 **try** 11:2 28:8 29:3 33:21,21 45:10 46:7 trying 31:19,20 31:24 40:1 47:7 **Tuesday** 19:6,9 28:9 44:19 turn 6:8 49:7 Turner 6:25 twenty 27:1 twenty-nine 27:1 two 3:20 11:24 12:25 26:19,24 26:24 28:18 33:6 35:6,17 45:15 48:21 51:15,17 type 21:15 24:19 30:24 36:4 38:6 types 38:13

30:25 31:11 37:22 unfortunately 17:21 unfounded 26:12 **unique** 11:16 29:14,15 Unit 15:2 37:3 University 18:5 33:18 50:12 **UNKNOWN** 44:5,7 53:21 unknowns 24:25 25:3,8 **Update** 17:2 updated 46:14 updates 38:17 upper 34:25 **uptake** 16:21,22 **urban** 31:2 use 11:13 33:21 **usual** 52:8 utilize 20:15 utilized 39:15 utilizing 35:18

39:5

understand 3:17

v varied 8:22 various 45:2 **Vegas** 24:1 vehicle 17:4 35:1,3,13 36:16,20 37:6 vehicles 36:12 **verify** 48:8,11 version 33:14 versus 41:4**Vice** 3:25 **victim's** 37:22 video 26:7 34:14 35:11,11,15 videos 36:6 **view** 13:10 **viewing** 3:12,13 viewpoints 11:17 views 37:9 violation 36:20 violations 37:5 **violent** 34:7,19 **VIP** 32:3 **visit** 52:16 visitors 12:20 visual 6:6 **voice** 23:5 volunteers 50:12 50:13,18 **voter** 45:13 46:2

### W

47:14

**voting** 7:13

waiting 27:19 **Waldis** 17:2 **walk** 18:6 walking 7:12 want 3:10,15 6:3 7:11 8:11,18 9:10,11 10:6 10:16 16:8 19:8,14 20:19 21:5,9 22:9 26:2,9 27:8,22 27:23 28:14,16 28:21 29:1 30:12,18,25 32:11 33:6 37:9,9 38:7 39:21,24 41:19

41:20 42:1,1 43:7,15,22 45:9 46:16 49:17 51:19 52:4,22,23 53:12 wanted 21:1 28:1 28:7 48:20 49:11 52:24 wants 28:3 31:14 31:14 Warren 18:6 wasn't 37:20 **waste** 36:16 watch 28:15 watching 42:4 water 20:13,15 20:17,23 21:5 21:6 way 37:18 47:5,7 48:17 50:20 Wayne 18:4 21:7 50:12 55:3 **we'll** 8:13 14:9 19:20,24 23:12 25:24 **we're** 9:5 16:16 16:17,18,20,24 22:23 23:5,6,8 23:10 25:1,15 25:16,16,17 26:1,12,24,25 27:1,2,17,18 31:8,17,19,20 31:24 33:24 41:1,3,5 42:7 42:12,16,17 46:13,17 47:8 47:19 48:3 50:3,10,15,25 we've 4:18 16:24 19:2 40:10,10 47:6 48:16,16 weakness 13:2 wear 26:10 Wednesday 28:9 **week** 8:4 10:23 11:1 17:15 18:8 35:23 36:3 weekly 10:18

weeks 11:1 28:2



weight 36:3 **welcome** 51:24 52:3.4 **Wellness** 51:10 went 5:1 28:19 43:24 44:18 45:5,18 48:12 52:16 west 18:6,10 32:5 34:23 westside 37:2 **whatnot** 38:17 wheelchairs 53:9 **White** 32:25 whoa 33:11 **William** 2:10 4:11 27:16 Williams 6:6 7:3 24:15,24 27:11 55:5,19 **Willie** 2:3,9 3:8 16:8 wish 41:11 54:7 witness 55:9,11 witnessed 41:2 wonderful 21:25 30:16 Woodward 3:19 word 31:21 wording 12:3 work 6:6 11:8,11 13:13,14 17:24 25:18 27:10 30:15,21 39:16 49:15 53:7 **worked** 15:1 workers 35:23 working 13:2 16:24 22:23 25:1,17 39:12 works 35:24 36:24 worn 26:6 wound 17:6,7 writing 46:20 Wyrick 6:13 **XL** 15:6

**Y**22:22

Yeah 19:24 20:5 51:21 year 16:17,18,21 16:23 20:14,24 26:20 year-to-date 34:19 **yearly** 27:15 **years** 13:24 15:11 26:24,25 27:1,2 38:17 41:3 **yep** 28:5 yesterday 49:5 52:17 **young** 17:15 21:16 31:4 53:20 **zip** 48:7,8,11 0 **1** 46:23 1,700 37:6 1:0318:10 **10**% 16:18 **10:00** 18:5 34:8 **10:30** 18:2 **100** 16:20 100% 48:16 **11:00** 19:7,9 **13** 17:1 26:7 **1301** 1:14 51:7 **138** 16:17 **13th** 15:7 **14601** 18:3 **14th** 9:25 10:4,5 42:9 150,00046:4 **154** 16:18 **16** 16:16 **17th** 34:23 18th 35:17 **19** 5:15

**1902** 41:4,14

**1974** 31:3

**1993** 15:8

**19th** 35:5

**1986** 14:21

2 **2**51:6 **2:00** 28:10 **2015** 34:6,20 **2016** 34:11 2017 36:10 20181:11 3:2 5:16 34:18,20 39:3 51:6 **2018-F** 48:25 **2018F** 18:10 **22**% 24:13 23 23:20 23500 18:10 24/7 32:11 **25** 25:2,9 **250** 36:3,3 **26** 1:11 3:2 23:19 **27th** 36:15 28th 35:10 2900 51:10 3 **3** 2:8 14:21 15:6 50:8 **3:00** 1:11 3:3 11:3 51:6 **3:05**5:3 3:087:17 **32** 13:24 15:10 **34** 24:25 25:3,4 **3589** 3:17 **387** 16:21 **39**% 34:18 4 **4** 2:3 46:19 **4:19** 54:18 **40** 26:6 **400,000** 46:3 **42** 18:6 **47** 25:15 **48203** 1:15 487 16:21 5 **5** 2:9 45:6,19 46:21 47:2 **5:30** 20:8 **50** 23:19

**52** 25:14 **53** 36:11 **5K** 18:6 6 **6** 2:4 39:3 46:23 **6:00** 18:5 **6:30** 11:4 51:9 **60** 50:13,14 **6253** 55:19 7 **7** 2:10 25:3 46:23 **73,000** 36:11 **7802** 12:8 **78032** 12:11 **7806-6** 12:10 **78067** 12:11 **7th** 20:3,4 **8:00** 34:9 50:16 **80** 36:12 9 **9-1-1** 37:10,13 38:13 39:3 53:5,13 **9/15/2022** 55:22 **9:00** 28:10 9th 51:8 500 35:24 36:1